
HLC Federal Compliance Filing Appendices 

Appendix A: Title IV General Program Responsibilities:  Most recent program 
review or other inspection/audit report since last comprehensive 
evaluation 

1. Documents/correspondence relating to most recent Title IV
program review (May 2004)
a. Letter form Ralph A. LoBosco to John Harms re: Final Program

Review Determination
b. Letter from John Harms to Ralph A. LoBosco July 14, 2004

response to findings
c. Letter from Ralph A. LoBosco to John Harms re: May 2004 Title

IV Program Review Report
d. May 2004 Title IV Program Review Report

2. June 2019/2018 audit
3. June 2018/2017 audit
4. June 2017/2016 audit

Appendix B: Title IV General Program Responsibilities:  Action letters issued by 
the Department 

• Not applicable (no action letters issued)

Appendix C: Financial Responsibility Requirements:  Action letters issued by the 
Department 

• Not applicable (no action letters issued)
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DANA F. COLE 
& COMPANYLLP 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

To the Board of Governors 
Western Community College Area 
Scottsbluff, Nebraska 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities and the dis­
cretely presented component unit of Western Community College Area (College) as of and for the years 
ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively 
comprise the College's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements 
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this 
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation 
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due 
to fraud or error. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We con­
ducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and per­
form the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of ma­
terial misstatement. The financial statements of Western Nebraska Community College Foundation, a 
discretely presented component unit of the College, were not audited in accordance with Government 
Auditing Standards. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclo­
sures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment, in­
cluding the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control rele­
vant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. 
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting principles used and reason­
ableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion. 
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Opinions 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the financial position of the business-type activities and the discretely presented component unit 
of Western Community College Area as of June 30, 2019 and 2018, and the respective changes in 
financial position and cash flows for the years then ended, in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the manage­
ment's discussion and analysis on pages 4 through 10 be presented to supplement the basic finan­
cial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required 
by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of finan­
cial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or 
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary infor­
mation in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, 
which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and 
comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic 
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial state­
ments. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the lim­
ited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any 
assurance. 

Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise Western Community College Area's basic financial statements. The schedules 
of general fund revenues, schedule of general fund expenditures, and schedule of expenditures of 
federal awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Ad­
ministrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, are pre­
sented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the financial statements. 

The schedule of general fund revenues, schedule of general fund expenditures, and schedule of ex­
penditures of federal awards are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. 
Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial 
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or 
to the financial statements themselves, and other additional ·procedures in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly 
presented in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated Novem­
ber 14, 2019, on our consideration of Western Community College Area's internal control over finan­
cial reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, 
grant agreements, and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our test­
ing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not 
to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is 
an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in consid­
ering Western Nebraska College Area's internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

Scottsbluff, Nebraska 
November 14, 2019 
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This section of Western Community College Area’s annual financial report presents Management’s 
Discussion and Analysis of the College’s financial performance during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019.  
Western Nebraska Community College Foundation is a legally separate not-for-profit corporation and is 
reported as a discretely presented component unit based on the nature and significance of its relationship to 
the College.  Management’s Discussion and Analysis does not contain information on the Foundation. Please 
read Management’s Discussion and Analysis in conjunction with the College’s financial statements, which 
follow this section. 
 
Using this annual report 
This discussion and analysis is intended as an introduction to the College’s basic financial statements and notes 
to the financial statements.   The financial statements include three components: The Statement of Net Position; 
the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position; and the Statement of Cash Flows provide 
information on the College as a whole and present a long-term view of the College’s finances. 
 
The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 
One of the most important questions asked about the College’s finances is, “Is Western Community College 
Area, as a whole, better off as a result of the year’s activities?” The Statement of Net Position and the Statement 
of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position report information on the College as a whole and on its 
activities in a way that helps answer this question. When revenues and other support exceed expenses, the result 
is an increase in net position. When the reverse occurs, the result is a decrease in net position. The relationship 
between revenues and expenses may be thought of as the College’s operating results. 
 
These statements include all assets and liabilities using the accrual basis of accounting, which is similar to the 
accounting used by most private-sector companies. All of the current year’s revenues and expenses are taken into 
account regardless of when cash is received or paid. 
 
These two statements report the College’s net position and changes in it.  You can think of the College’s net 
position (the difference between assets and liabilities) as one way to measure the College’s financial health, or 
financial position. Over time, increases or decreases in the College’s net position are one indicator of whether 
financial health is improving or deteriorating. You will need to consider other nonfinancial factors, however, 
such as enrollment trends, placement results, program quality, condition of buildings, campus safety and other 
factors to assess the overall health of the institution. 
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Figure 1 
Western Community College Area 

Net Position 
(in thousands of dollars) 

 

Table 1 
Western Community College Area 

Net Position 
(in thousands of dollars) 

    
 2019 2018 2017 
    
Current assets 26,831 29,925 30,057 
Noncurrent assets 1,224 377 290 
Capital assets 42,265 29,041 26,263 

Total assets 70,320 59,343 56,610 
         Deferred Outflows           -           -           - 
Current liabilities 5,573 4,885 3,435 
Noncurrent liabilities 11,202   5,561   6,666 

Total liabilities 16,775 10,446 10,101 
         Deferred Inflows   1,450           -           - 
Net position    

Invested in capital assets    
net of related debt 30,240 22,829 18,973 

Restricted 4,600 7,701 8,744 
Unrestricted 17,255 18,367 18,792 

  Total net position 52,095 48,897 46,509 
 
Net position of the College increased by 6.5% ($3,198 thousands) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019. 
The increase in net position is due to the following factors: 
 

Net position increased due to construction projects in progress at the end of the year. 
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Table 2 
Western Community College Area 

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and 
Changes in Net Position 
(in thousands of dollars) 

    
 2019 2018 2017 
Operating revenue    

Student tuition and fees 2,120 2,312 2,494 
Grants and contracts 394 176 39 
Sales and charges of educational departments - 1 12 
Auxiliary enterprises 2,166 1,813 2,404 
Other        127        138           62 

        Total operating revenue      4,807      4,440      5,011 
 

Operating expense    
Personnel services 18,455 17,450 17,420 
Operating expenses 11,106 10,423 9,553 
Travel 667 536 648 
Capital assets not capitalized 372 386 192 
Depreciation     1,653     1,790     1,691 
    Total operating expenses   32,253   30,585   29,504 

Net operating loss (27,446) (26,145) (24,493) 
    

Nonoperating revenue    
    State aid 12,543 12,571 12,441 
    Property taxes 10,160 9,894 10,119 

Grants and contracts 3,817 3,444 3,606 
Other receipts - - - 
Investment income 339 284 155 
Interest on capital debt      (353)     (244)     (216) 
    Net nonoperating revenues   26,506   25,949   26,105 
    
Capital appropriations 2,800 2,798 2,664 

    Other grants and contributions 1,338 - - 
    Gain (loss) on sale of capital assets            -                                              (214)                                                     9                                           
        Net other income    4,138    2,584    2,673 

    
    Increase in net position 3,198 2,388 4,285 
    

Net position    
    Net position beginning of year   48,897   46,509   42,224 
    Net position end of year   52,095   48,897   46,509 
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Figure 2 
Western Community College Area 

Revenues 
(in thousands of dollars) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

   
 

  
  
   

 
 
The change in revenues was the result of the following: 
 

Operating revenue increased by 8.3% ($367 thousands), primarily due to increases in 
nongovernmental grants and contracts, and auxiliary enterprises. 
 
Nonoperating revenue increased by 2.5% ($664 thousands).  Property taxes increased by 2.7%, 
and government grants and contracts increased by 10.8%. 

 
Other income increased by 60.1% ($1,553 thousands), primarily due to increases in contributions 
for construction projects, and a loss on disposal of assets related to the Main Building Addition 
and Renovation project in the prior year. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 -

 5,000

 10,000

 15,000

 20,000

 25,000

 30,000

Operating Nonoperating Other

2019 2018 2017



WESTERN COMMUNITY COLLEGE AREA 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

8 
 

Figure 3 
Western Community College Area 

Expenses 
(in thousands of dollars) 

 
The change in expenses was the result of the following: 
 

Total expenses increased 5.5% ($1,667 thousands) for fiscal year ended June 30, 2019.   
Personnel services increased 5.8% ($1,005 thousands).   
Operating expenses increased 6.6% ($683 thousands).   
Depreciation decreased by 7.7% ($138 thousands).   
Other expenses increased by 12.6% ($117 thousands). 
 
 

The Statement of Cash Flows 
Another way to assess the financial health of the College is to look at the Statement of Cash Flows. The 
purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows is to provide relevant information about cash receipts and cash 
payments made by the College during a fiscal year. The Statement also helps users to assess the 
College’s: 
 

Ability to generate future net cash flows 
Ability to meet its obligations as they come due 
Needs for external financing 
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Table 3 

Western Community College Area 
Cash Flows 

(in thousands of dollars) 
    
 2019 2018 2017 
Cash provided by (used in):    

Operating activities (25,509) (23,607) (22,270) 
Noncapital financing activities 26,237 26,187 25,666 
Capital and related financing activities (5,303) (3,342) 398 
Investing activities       148    (705)  (3,917) 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (4,427)  (1,467)  (123)  
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year  10,809   12,276   12,399  
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year    6,382   10,809   12,276  

 
 
The change in cash flow was the result of the following: 

 
Cash used by operating activities increased $1,902 thousands (8.1%) primarily due to an increase in 
operating expenses, which was offset by an increase in auxiliary and other receipts. 
 
Cash provided by noncapital financing activities increased $50 thousands (0.2%) due to increases in 
gifts and grants, which were offset by decreases in property tax receipts and State aid appropriations.   
 
Cash used by capital and related financing activities increased $1,961 thousands (58.7%) primarily 
due to an increase in acquisition and construction of capital assets, and an increase in principal paid 
on capital debt.  This was offset by proceeds from a lease-purchase agreement, and donations 
received for the project. 
 
Cash provided by investing activities increased by $854 thousands due primarily to a net decrease in 
the amount of CDs purchased compared to the prior year, and an increase in investment income. 
 
Cash and cash equivalents decreased for the 2018-19 fiscal year by $4,427 thousands (40.9%) 
primarily because of construction costs. 
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Capital asset and debt administration 
  
Capital Assets 

Table 4 
Western Community College Area 

Capital Assets 
(Net of depreciation, in thousands of dollars) 

    
 2019 2018 2017 
    
Land and improvements 1,993 2,070 2,070 
Buildings 20,801 20,899 21,698 
Equipment 1,819  2,210  2,437  
Construction in progress 17,652   3,861        58 
 42,265  29,040  26,263  

 
 
Major capital additions funded this year and the source of resources that funded the acquisition include (in 
thousands of dollars): 
 

Equipment purchases from general operating funds 237 
Equipment purchases from grant funds 40 
Equipment purchases from auxiliary funds 35 
Construction in progress from capital improvement funds 14,566 

 
 
 
The College has planned capital expenditures for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020, of approximately 
$5,556 thousands. 
 

Equipment financed by the General Fund, student fees and capital grants will total $513 
thousands. 
 
Other capital construction projects of $5,043 thousands will be financed from the Capital 
Improvement Fund, ADA/Hazardous Materials Fund, and a Capital Lease. 

 
 
More detailed information about the College’s capital assets is presented in Note 6 of the financial 
statements. 
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Debt 
At June 30, 2019 and 2018, the College had $12,025 and $6,211 thousands debt outstanding.  
 

Table 5 
Western Community College Area 

Outstanding Debt 
(in thousands of dollars) 

    
 2019 2018 2017 
    
2012 Student facility bond 1,679 1,863 2,042 
2012 WNCC Facilities Corporation bond - 1,321 2,045 
2013 Limited tax facility refunding bonds 1,275 1,421 1,568 
2015 Student facility revenue bond 1,471 1,554 1,635 
2018 Capital lease payable   7,600       52          - 
  12,025   6,211   7,290 

 
Economic factors that will affect the future 
The economic position of Western Community College Area is closely tied to that of the State.  For 2019-
2020, the Nebraska Legislature decreased State Aid to Western Nebraska Community College in the 
amount of $28,132.   

 
The College Board of Governors adopted a total college property tax levy of 10.1781 cents for 2019-
2020.  Valuations for the 13-county service area decreased 0.15%, which also increased the total college 
property tax request by $355,986 at that levy. 

 
Tuition rates were increased $2.50 per credit hour. 
 
Financial contact 
The College’s financial statements are designed to present users with a general overview of the  
College’s finances and demonstrate the College’s accountability.  If you have questions about the  
report or need additional information, contact the College’s Vice President of Administrative Services, 
William D. Knapper, at 1601 East 27th Street, Scottsbluff, Nebraska 69361, or call (308) 635-3606. 



Western Community College Area

June 30, 2019 and 2018

2019 2018
College Foundation College Foundation

Assets
Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 6,308,951           2,331,201           10,745,107         1,063,914           
Restricted cash 73,137                -                          63,512                -                          
Short-term investments 12,237,411         4,145,392 12,018,728         5,345,619
Property taxes receivable 4,943,260           -                          4,688,453           -                          
Accounts receivable (net) 1,627,353           774,530              1,352,376           1,226,306           
Interest receivable 86,966                8,230                  106,586              2,190                  
Inventories 231,818              -                          235,982              -                          
Prepaid expense 726,869              - 714,471              -
Pledge receivable - current 595,000              -                          -                          -                          

Total current assets 26,830,765         7,259,353           29,925,215         7,638,029           

Non-current Assets
Deposit with Foundation 368,884              -                          377,518              -                          
Pledge receivable 855,000              - - -
Capital assets - net 42,265,243         167,946              29,040,647         175,946              

Total non-current assets 43,489,127         167,946              29,418,165         175,946              

Total assets 70,319,892         7,427,299           59,343,380         7,813,975           

Liabilities
Current liabilities

Accounts payable 2,798,979           369,612              2,262,733           125,991              
Accrued salaries 1,706,193           -                          1,723,659           -                          
Accrued interest 21,515                -                          13,422                -                          
Deposits 43,314                -                          43,040                -                          
Bonds payable - current 422,915              -                          649,594              -                          
Capital lease payable - current 400,342              
Annuity payable - current -                          13,814                -                          12,907                
Pledge payable - current -                          595,000              - -
Deposits held in custody for others 179,545              368,884              192,018              377,518              

Total current liabilities 5,572,803           1,347,310           4,884,466           516,416              

Non-current liabilities
Bonds payable 4,002,773           -                          5,509,461           -                          
Capital lease payable 7,199,316           -                          52,000                -                          
Annuity payable -                          194,306              -                          208,120              
Pledge payable -                          855,000              - -

Total non-current liabilities 11,202,089         1,049,306           5,561,461           208,120              

Total liabilities 16,774,892         2,396,616           10,445,927         724,536              

Deferred Inflows of Resources 1,450,000           -                          -                          -                          

Net Position
Net investment in capital assets 30,239,897         167,946              22,829,591         175,946              
Restricted for:

Expendable
Loans 135,519              -                          134,359              -                          
Capital projects 3,823,669           -                          6,951,648           -                          
Other 474,220              1,692,740           448,137              3,743,102           

Nonexpendable 166,581              2,484,799           166,581              1,768,047           
Unrestricted 17,255,114         685,198              18,367,137         1,402,344           

.
Total net position 52,095,000         5,030,683           48,897,453         7,089,439           

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

Statements of Net Position
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Western Community College Area
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

For the Years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

2019 2018
College Foundation College Foundation

REVENUES
Operating revenues

Tuition and fees 2,119,536           -                          2,311,604           -                          
Nongovernmental grants and contracts 394,239              -                          176,350              -                          
Auxiliary enterprises 2,165,974           -                          1,813,151           -                          
Other operating income 126,734              28,800                138,642              28,800                

Total operating revenues 4,806,483           28,800                4,439,747           28,800                

EXPENSES
Operating expenses

Personnel services 18,455,350         -                          17,450,018         -                          
Operating expenses 11,045,729         4,073,192           10,422,451         811,232              
Travel 667,099              -                          536,448              -                          
Noncapitalized capital assets 372,112              -                          386,141              -                          
Depreciation 1,652,459           8,000                  1,790,391           8,000                  

Total operating expenses 32,192,749         4,081,192           30,585,449         819,232              
Operating income (loss) (27,386,266)        (4,052,392)          (26,145,702)        (790,432)             

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Governmental appropriations

State aid 12,543,209         -                          12,571,341         -                          
Property taxes 10,160,343         -                          9,894,289           -                          

Governmental grants and contracts
Federal 3,226,123           -                          3,175,961           -                          
State 530,467              -                          268,878              -                          

Nongovernmental grants and contracts 1,338,320           -                          -                          -                          
Gifts -                          1,748,356           -                          684,713              
Investment income 338,923              245,280              284,112              404,986              
Interest on capital assets - related debt (352,954)             -                          (244,126)             -                          

Net nonoperating revenues (expenses) 27,784,431         1,993,636           25,950,455         1,089,699           
Income before other revenues, (expenses), gains,
or (losses) 398,165              (2,058,756)          (195,247)             299,267              

OTHER INCOME
Capital appropriations 2,799,232           -                          2,798,394           -                          
Gain (loss) on disposal of capital assets 150                     -                          (214,413)             -                          

Total other income 2,799,382           -                          2,583,981           -                          

Increase in net position 3,197,547           (2,058,756)          2,388,734           299,267              

NET POSITION
Net position - beginning of year  48,897,453         7,089,439           46,508,719         6,790,172           
Net position - end of year 52,095,000         5,030,683           48,897,453         7,089,439           

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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2019 2018
Cash flows from operating activities

Tuition and fees 2,078,554               2,096,414               
Payments for personnel services (18,472,815)           (17,516,239)           
Payments for operating expenses (9,954,981)             (8,590,996)             
Payments for non-capitalized assets (372,111)                (386,141)                
Payments for financial aid awards (1,057,275)             (1,131,876)             
Collection of loans to students and employees 49,376                    45,020                    
Loans issued to students and employees (45,484)                  (42,700)                  
Auxiliary enterprise receipts 2,165,974               1,780,297               
Other receipts (payments) 159,157                  138,695                  

Net cash(used) in operating activities (25,449,605)           (23,607,526)           

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities
State aid appropriation 12,543,209             12,571,341             
Property taxes 9,938,327               10,059,195             
Collection of loans to students 1,234,911               1,303,607               
Loans issued to students (1,234,911)             (1,303,607)             
Federal grants and awards 2,935,334               2,916,851               
Gifts and grants for other than capital purposes 760,425                  640,019                  

Net cash provided by (used in) noncapital financing activities 26,177,295             26,187,406             

Cash flows from capital financing activities
Property taxes - capital improvement fund 2,766,440               2,765,902               
Purchase of capital assets (310,981)                (528,012)                
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (14,566,074)           (4,262,336)             
Proceeds for capital debt issue 7,948,000               -                             
Other grants and contributions 1,338,320               -                             
Principal paid on capital debt (2,133,709)             (1,079,105)             
Net proceeds from the sale of capital asset 150                         7,683                      
Interest paid on capital debt (344,861)                (245,793)                

Net cash provided by (used in) capital financing activities (5,302,715)             (3,341,661)             

Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments 28,231,248             17,796,816             
Interest on investments 358,543                  227,911                  
Purchase of investments (28,441,297)           (18,730,382)           

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 148,494                  (705,655)                

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (4,426,531)             (1,467,436)             

Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of year 10,808,619             12,276,055             

Cash and cash equivalents - end of year 6,382,088               10,808,619             

Components of cash
Cash 6,308,951               10,745,107             
Restricted Cash 73,137                    63,512                    

6,382,088               10,808,619             
14
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2019 2018
Reconciliation of net operating income (loss) to
net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

Operating income (loss) (27,386,266)           (26,145,702)           
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash

provided by (used in) operating activities:
Depreciation 1,652,459               1,790,391               
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Accounts receivable (218,038)                (330,695)                
Student and staff notes receivable 3,892                      2,320                      
Inventories 4,164                      2,580                      
Prepaid expenses (12,398)                  (351,461)                
Accounts payable 536,246                  1,460,040               
Accrued salaries (17,465)                  (66,221)                  
Other Liabilities -                             -                             
Deposits held for others (12,199)                  31,222                    

Net cash used in operating activities (25,449,605)           (23,607,526)           

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

  

For the Years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018
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Note 1.  Organization and summary of significant accounting policies 
Western Community College Area was established July 1, 1973, by legislative action. The Area encompasses 
the 13 counties of the Nebraska panhandle. An eleven member Board of Governors is the College’s ruling body 
and establishes the policies and procedures by which the College is governed.   

 
Reporting Entity 

 The concept underlying the definition of the financial reporting entity is that elected officials are 
accountable to their constituents for their actions. As required by accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States of America, the financial reporting entity includes both the primary government and all of 
its component units as defined by Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 14 
The Financial Reporting Entity. An organization other than a primary government serves as a nucleus for a 
reporting entity when it issues separate financial statements.  Western Community College Area is not a 
component unit of another primary governmental reporting entity.  

        
 The Western Nebraska Community College Facilities Corporation (WNCCFC) is a legally separate, 

nonprofit corporation which is a component unit of Western Nebraska Community College. WNCCFC was 
formed by the College in 2003 to acquire property to be leased to and purchased by the College. The Board 
of Governors of the College appoints the members of the Board of WNCCFC. The WNCCFC provides 
services entirely to the College. The services provided by WNCCFC are so intertwined with the College that 
the WNCCFC is in substance the same as the College and it is reported as part of the College and blended 
into the College’s financial statements. 

  
College Foundation 

       Under GASB 39, Determining Whether Certain Organizations are Component Units - an amendment of 
GASB 14, legally separate organizations meeting certain criteria should be discretely presented as 
component units.  The criteria are: 
1. The economic resources received or held by the separate organization are entirely or almost entirely for 

the direct benefit of the College or its constituents (e.g., students, faculty and staff). 
2. The College is entitled to, or has the ability to otherwise access, a majority of the economic resources 

received or held by the separate organization. 
3. The economic resources received or held by an individual organization that the College is entitled to, or 

has the ability to otherwise access, are significant to the College. 
 

 The Western Nebraska Community College Foundation (Foundation) is a legally separate, tax exempt 
component unit of Western Community College Area. The Foundation acts primarily as a fundraising 
organization to provide support to the College.  The Foundation is governed by a volunteer Board.  
Although the College does not control the timing or amounts of receipts from the Foundation, the majority 
of resources, or income thereon, which the Foundation holds and invests, is restricted to the activities of the 
College by the donors.  Because restricted resources held by the Foundation can only be used by, or for the 
benefit of the College, the Foundation is considered a component unit of the College and is discretely 
presented in the College’s financial statements.   

       
       These financial statements do not contain disclosures of information of the Foundation.  Complete financial 

statements for the Foundation can be obtained from the Foundation offices located in the John N. Harms 
Center at 2620 College Park, Scottsbluff, NE 69361.    
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Note 1.  Organization and summary of significant accounting policies (Continued) 
Basis of Accounting 

 The College’s financial statements have been prepared using the economic resources measurement focus 
and the accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues, expenses, assets, deferred outflows of 
resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources resulting from exchange and exchange-like 
transactions should be recognized when the exchange takes place. 

 
       In accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 20, Accounting and 

Financial Reporting for Proprietary Funds and Other Governmental Entities That Use Proprietary Fund 
Accounting, which has been superseded by GASB Statement No. 62, Codification of Accounting and 
Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements, 
the College has elected to follow all applicable GASB pronouncements,  including all National Council of 
Governmental Accounting (NCGA) statements and interpretations currently in effect, as well as all 
Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) statements and interpretations issued after November 30, 
1989, except those that conflict or contradict GASB pronouncements. 

 
       In addition to the GASB Statements previously discussed, the significant accounting policies followed by 

the College are described below: 
 
 GASB Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements – and Management’s Discussion and Analysis- for 

State and Local Governments, establishes financial reporting requirements that require the basic financial 
statements and required supplementary information for general purpose governments should consist of: 
management’s discussion and analysis, basic financial statements, and required supplementary information. 

 
 GASB Statement No. 35 – Basic financial Statements – and Management’s Discussion and Analysis – for 

Public Colleges and Universities – an amendment of GASB Statement No. 34, establishes accounting and 
financial reporting standards for public colleges and universities within the financial reporting guidelines of 
GASB 34.  In accordance with this statement, the College presents statements of net position, revenues, 
expenses, and changes in net position, and cash flows on college-wide basis.  The objective of this statement 
is to enhance the understandability of usefulness of the external financial reports issued. 

 
 GASB Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of 

Resources, and Net Position, establishes a new statement of net position format that reports separately all 
assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, and net position (which is 
the net residual amount of the other elements).  The Statement requires deferred outflows of resources and 
deferred inflows of resources to be reported separately from assets and liabilities.   

 
       GASB Statement No 65, Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities, amends or supersedes the 

accounting and financial reporting guidance for certain items previously required to be reported as assets or 
liabilities.  The objective is to either properly clarify certain items that were previously reported as assets 
and liabilities as deferred outflows of resources or deferred inflows of resources or recognize certain items 
that were previously reported as assets and liabilities as outflows of resources (expenses) or inflows of 
resources (revenues).   

 
The Foundation is a private nonprofit organization that reports under FASB standards, including FASB 
Statement No. 958-205, Financial Reporting for Not-for-Profit Organizations.  As such, certain revenue 
recognition criteria and presentation features are different from GASB revenue recognition criteria and  
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Note 1.  Organization and summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)    
presentation features. No modifications have been made to the Foundation’s financial information in the 
College’s financial reporting entity for these differences. 
 

      Basis of Presentation 
      The accompanying financial statements are presented in accordance with accounting principles generally 

accepted in the United States of America as prescribed by Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
(GASB). 

  
       Pursuant to the provisions of GASB Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements – Management’s 

Discussion and Analysis – State and Local Governments, as amended by GASB Statement No. 35, Basic 
Financial Statements – and Management’s Discussion and Analysis – for Public Colleges and Universities, 
the full scope of the College’s activities is considered to be a single business-type activity (BTA) and 
accordingly, is reported within a single column in the basic financial statements. 

 
Donated Assets and Services 

       Donated materials or equipment, when received, are reflected as contributions in the accompanying 
statements at their estimated fair market values at the date of receipt. 

 
 Budgets 
       Budgets are prepared on the same basis of accounting except that capital assets acquired are recorded as 

expenses and depreciation is not recorded. 
 

 Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 The College follows GASB No. 31 (as amended by GASB No. 40), Accounting and Financial Reporting for 

Certain Investments and for External Investment Pools.  GASB 31 requires the College's investments to be 
recorded at market value with the changes in the market value of investments reported as investment income 
in the statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in fund equity.  Investments are recorded at the market 
value as determined by quoted market prices. 

 
       Cash deposits, primarily interest bearing, are covered by federal depository insurance or pledged collateral 

of unregistered U.S. Government securities held by various depositories.  Investments at June 30, 2019 and 
2018 were in unregistered U.S. Government securities and Federal Agency obligations held in the College's 
name by the custodial banks. 

 
       For the purposes of the statements of cash flows, the College considers all highly liquid debt instruments 

purchased with a maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. 
  

Investments 
Investments are reported at fair value. 

 
 Receivables 
       Receivables consist of tuition and fees charges to students and charges for auxiliary enterprises’ sales and 

services. Receivables also include amounts due from the federal government, state and local governments, 
and private sources in connection with reimbursement of allowable expenditures made pursuant to contracts 
and grants, and pledges that are verifiable, measurable, and expected to be collected and available for 
expenditures for which the resource provider’s conditions have been satisfied. Receivables are recorded net 
of estimated uncollectible amounts. 
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Note 1.  Organization and summary of significant accounting policies (Continued) 
Inventories 

 Inventories are valued at the lower-of-cost or market value as determined by the first-in, first-out (FIFO) 
method. 

 
Bond Issuance Costs 

 Bond issuance costs are expenditures related to the issuance of bonds.  With the implementation of GASB 
65, these costs are now expensed when incurred. 

 
 Capital Assets 
 Capital assets are stated at cost at date of acquisition, or fair value at date of donation in the case of gifts. 

The College capitalizes assets that have a value or cost in excess of $5,000 at the date of acquisition and an 
expected useful life of one or more years. Library books are expensed. 

 
Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the useful lives of the assets. The following 
estimated useful lives are used to compute depreciation: 

  Buildings      40 years 
  Building improvements   20 years 
  Building content replacements  10 years 
  Office furniture     10 years 
  Instructional equipment     7 years 

Other equipment      5 years 
  Office equipment        3 years 
  Vehicles         3 years 

 
       Land, artwork, and other collectible assets are not depreciated. 

        
       Restricted Assets 

Restricted assets represent assets whose use is restricted by external parties or by law through constitutional 
provisions or enabling legislation. 
 
Restricted/Unrestricted Resource Policy 
If both restricted and unrestricted resources are available to finance a program, restricted resources are used 
first unless the restricted resources require unrestricted resources to be used first. 
 
Unearned Revenue 
Unearned revenue is revenue received but not earned as of the end of the fiscal year. 
  
Operating Versus Nonoperating  
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services in connection with the College's 
ongoing operations.  The principal operating revenues are charges to customers for services.  Operating 
expenses include the cost of service, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets.  All 
revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses. 

 
Compensated Absences 
Vacation leave meets the criteria in GASB Statement No. 16 and is included in accrued compensated 
absences. The criteria for accruing compensated absences are met when employee’s rights to receive 
compensation are attributable to services already rendered and it is probable that the employer will  
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Note 1.  Organization and summary of significant accounting policies (Continued) 
compensate the employee through paid time off or some other means, such as cash at termination or 
retirement. 
 

       Noncurrent Liabilities 
       Noncurrent liabilities include accrued salaries for early retirement, deferred revenue, deposits held in 

custody for others, and notes and bonds payable. 
 

Deferred Inflows of Resources 
In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for 
deferred inflow of resources.  This separate financial statement element, deferred inflow of resources, 
represents an acquisition of net position that applies to future periods and so will not be recognized as an 
inflow of resources (revenue) until then. 

 
Net Position 

       The net position of the College is broken down into three categories:  (1) net invested in capital assets, (2) 
restricted component of net position, and (3) unrestricted component of net position. 
 

       Net invested in capital assets - Consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the 
outstanding balances of bonds, mortgages, notes, or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, 
construction, or improvement of those assets. Deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets or related debt 
are included in this component of net position.  
 

       Restricted - Consists of restricted assets reduced by liabilities and deferred inflows of resources related to 
those assets. Generally, a liability relates to restricted assets if the asset results from a resource flow that also 
results in the recognition of a liability or if the liability will be liquidated with the restricted assets reported. 

 
       Unrestricted - Consists of assets that do not meet the definition of restricted net position or net position 

invested in capital assets, net of related debt. 
 
       It is the College's policy to first use restricted components of net position prior to the use of unrestricted 

components of net position when an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and 
unrestricted components of net position are available. 

 
       Restricted Net Position 
 Restricted net position is further broken down into expendable and nonexpendable portions. 
 

Restricted net position – expendable includes resources in which the College is legally or contractually 
obligated to spend in accordance with restrictions imposed by third parties. 
 
Restricted net position – nonexpendable consists of endowment funds in which the donors have stipulated, 
as a condition of the gift instrument, that the principal is to be maintained inviolate and in perpetuity and 
invested for the purpose of producing present and future income. 

 
Scholarship Allowances 
Student tuition and fees revenues and certain other revenues from College charges are reported net of 
scholarship allowances in the accompanying statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position.  



WESTERN COMMUNITY COLLEGE AREA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

21 
 

Note 1.  Organization and summary of significant accounting policies (Continued) 
The scholarship allowance is the difference between the actual charge for goods and services provided by 
the College and the amount that is paid by students or by third parties on the students’ behalf. Student 
financial assistance grants, such as Pell grants and other federal, state or nongovernmental programs, are 
recorded as either operating or nonoperating revenues in the accompanying statements of revenues, 
expenses, and changes in net position. To the extent that revenues from these programs are used to satisfy 
tuition, fees, and other charges, the College has recorded them as scholarship allowances.  
 
Revenue and Expense Recognition 
The College presents its revenues and expenses as operating or nonoperating based on recognition 
definitions from GASB Statement No. 9 Reporting Cash Flows of Proprietary and Nonexpendable Trust 
Funds and Governmental Entities That Use Proprietary Fund Accounting. Operating activities are those 
activities that are necessary and essential to the mission of the College.  Operating revenues include all 
charges to customers, grants received for student financial assistance, and interest earned on loans. Grants 
received for student financial assistance are considered operating revenues because they provide resources 
for student charges and such programs are necessary and essential to the mission of the College.  Revenues 
from non-exchange transactions and state appropriations that represent subsidies or gifts to the College, as 
well as investment income, are considered nonoperating since these are investing, capital or noncapital 
financing activities.  Operating expenses are all expense transactions incurred other than those related to 
investing, capital or noncapital financing activities. Revenues received for capital financing activities, as 
well as related expenses are considered neither operating nor non-operating activities and are presented after 
nonoperating activities on the accompanying statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net assets. 
   
Use of Estimates 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and 
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts 
of revenues and expenses during the reported period.  Actual results could differ from those estimates. 
 

Note 2.  Cash and Investments 
The College can invest, after proper consideration of the requirements for the availability of money, funds of the 
College in securities the nature of which individuals of prudence, discretion, and intelligence acquire or retain in 
dealing with the property of another. 

  
Interest Rate Risk 
The College does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment maturities as a means of 
managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates. 
 
Credit Risk 
In accordance with the College’s investment policy, funds may be invested, within certain limits, in FDIC 
insured banks, U.S. Treasury and federal agencies, and certificates of deposit issued by FDIC insured banks.  
 
Custodial Credit Risk – Deposits 
Custodial credit risk for deposits of the College is the risk that the College’s deposits would not be covered 
by depository insurance. Deposits were reflected in the accounts of the banks at $19,306,689 and 
$24,140,106 as of June 30, 2019 and 2018.  All of the balances for June 30, 2019 and 2018 were insured or 
fully collateralized. 
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Note 2.  Cash and Investments (Continued) 
Custodial Credit Risk – Investments 
For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of a failure of the counter party, the 
College will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the 
possession of an outside party. The College has no custodial credit risk in its investment portfolio. 

 
Investments at June 30, 2019 and 2018, are summarized as follows: 
 

 
Investment Type 

    2019 
Fair Value 

    2018 
Fair Value 

   
Certificates of deposit 10,548,678  10,656,738 
Money market accounts                       1,688,733    1,361,990 

 12,237,411  12,018,728 
 

Note 3.  Property Tax Receivable 
Property taxes levied for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2019, were due December 31, 2018, and became 
delinquent in May and September of 2019.  Property tax revenues, based on the assessed valuation and the levy 
set, are recognized in the current fiscal year even though part of the property tax revenue is not delinquent or 
collected until the following fiscal year. Property taxes are recognized net of the county collection fee of 1%.  
The assessed valuation and levies in cents per $100 of assessed valuation for the fiscal years ended June 30 were 
as follows: 
 

 2019 2018 
Assessed valuation August 2019 and 2018 13,057,515,801 12,990,978,312 
Levy in cents per $100 of assessed valuation 
      General Fund 7.7544 7.5436 
      Capital Improvement Fund 2.1360 2.1379 
      ADA/Hazardous Waste Fund   0.0000   0.0000 

Total   9.8904   9.6815 
 

The amount of property tax receivable at June 30 was as follows: 
 2019 2018 

       General Fund 3,875,201 3,653,186 
       Capital Improvement Fund 1,068,059 1,035,267 
       ADA/Hazardous Waste Fund                              -                                           -              

Total  4,943,260  4,688,453 
   

The following amounts, which are included in the property tax receivable amount, were held as cash 
by county treasurers at June 30. 

   
 2019 2018 

       General Fund 98,917 107,844 
       Capital Improvement Fund 27,257 30,546 
       ADA/Hazardous Waste Fund                               -                               - 

Total 126,174 138,390 
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Note 4.  Accounts Receivable 
Accounts receivable at June 30 were as follows: 
 2019 2018 

Federal non-exchange grants 335,954 349,576 
Tuition and fees 339,639 569,167 
State grants 192,773 118,320 
Other                   758,987                   315,313 

Total 1,627,353 1,352,376 
   

 
Note 5.  Pledge Receivable 
 
The Foundation pledged $1,450,000 to the College to aid in the construction of its Performing Arts Center.  The 
Pledge is payable over a ten year period.  The pledge is also reported as a deferred inflow, recognized as 
payment is received. 
 
Note 6.  Inventories 
Inventories at June 30 were as follows:   
 2019 2018 

Books and supplies 179,547    183,711    
          Project car                      52,271                         52,271 

Total 231,818 235,982 
   

 
 
Note 7.  Capital Assets 
Capital asset activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019 was as follows: 

 
June 30, 

2018 
 

Additions 
 

Deletions 
June 30, 

2019 
Capital assets, not being depreciated    

Land 1,004,688 - - 1,004,688 
Artwork & collectibles 190,861 - - 190,861 
Construction in progress   3,861,433  14,566,074     775,272   17,652,235 

Total   5,056,982  14,566,074     775,272   18,847,784 
Capital assets, being depreciated    

Land improvements 2,050,125 - - 2,050,125 
Buildings 41,362,673 775,272 - 42,137,945 
Equipment   9,332,409       310,981          6,299   9,637,091 

Total 52,745,207    1,086,253          6,299 53,825,161 
Less accumulated depreciation    

Land improvements 984,516 77,380 - 1,061,896 
Buildings 20,463,618 872,858 - 21,336,476 
Equipment   7,313,408         702,221         6,299     8,009,330   

Total 28,761,542    1,652,459         6,299   30,407,702 
Capital assets, net 29,040,647  13,999,868     775,272 42,265,243 
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Note 7.  Capital Assets (Continued) 
Capital asset activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018 was as follows: 

 
June 30, 

2017 
 

Additions 
 

Deletions 
June 30, 

2018 
Capital assets, not being depreciated    

Land 1,004,688 - - 1,004,688 
Artwork & collectibles 190,861 - - 190,861 
Construction in progress        57,414  4,266,432     462,413   3,861,433 

Total   1,252,963  4,266,432     462,413   5,056,982 
Capital assets, being depreciated    

Land improvements 2,034,519 195,606 180,000 2,050,125 
Buildings 41,330,029 200,709 168,065 41,362,673 
Equipment   9,271,467     594,111      533,169   9,332,409 

Total 52,636,015     990,426      881,234 52,745,207 
Less accumulated depreciation    

Land improvements 969,412 75,854 60,750 984,516 
Buildings 19,631,814 897,024 65,220 20,463,618 
Equipment   7,024,966       817,513     529,071     7,313,408   

Total 27,626,192  1,790,391     655,041   28,761,542 
Capital assets, net 26,262,786  3,466,467     688,606 29,040,647 

  
Note 8.  Accrued Salaries 
Accrued salaries for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, were composed of the following: 

      2019       2018 
Accrued salaries 1,091,725 1,112,462 
Accrued compensated absences     614,468     611,197 

Total accrued salaries  1,706,193  1,723,659 
 
Note 9.   Long-Term Liabilities 
Long-term liability activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019, was as follows:  
 
   Direct Borrowings and  
   Direct Placements: 

June 30, 
2018 

 
Additions 

 
Reductions 

June 30, 
2019 

Current 
Portion 

      
          Student Facility Bond 1,863,171 - 184,119 1,679,052 189,466 
          Student Facility Revenue Bond 1,554,029 - 82,393 1,471,636 83,449 
          WNCC Facilities Corp Bond 1,320,605 - 1,320,605 - - 
          WNCC/ESU #13 Bond 1,421,250               -     146,250 1,275,000  150,000 
          Lease-Purchase Agreement      52,000  7,948,000     400,342  7,599,658  400,342 
               Total bonds and notes payable 6,211,055  7,948,000  2,133,709 12,025,346  823,257 
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Note 9.   Long-Term Liabilities (Continued) 
Long-term liability activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, was as follows:  
 
   Direct Borrowings and  
   Direct Placements: 

June 30, 
2017 

 
Additions 

 
Reductions 

June 30, 
2018 

Current 
Portion 

      
          Student Facility Bond 2,042,095 - 178,924 1,863,171 184,119 
          Student Facility Revenue Bond 1,635,378 - 81,349 1,554,029 82,393 
          WNCC Facilities Corp Bond 2,045,187 - 724,582 1,320,605 236,832 
          WNCC/ESU #13 Bond 1,567,500               -     146,250 1,421,250  146,250 
          Lease-Purchase Agreement                -     52,000                -      52,000             - 
               Total bonds and notes payable 7,290,160     52,000  1,131,105 6,211,055  649,594 
                

 
Note 10.  Debt Service Requirements 
Student Facility Bond 
February 10, 2012 issue.  $2,963,045 due in semi-annual installments of $118,259 through April 30, 2027; interest 
at 2.883%, secured by residence hall rental receipts. 

 
WNCC/ESU #13 Limited Tax Facility Refunding Bonds 
June 17, 2013 issue.  $2,148,750 due in annual installments of $146,250 to $175,500 through June 15, 2027; 
interest at 0.40% to 2.70%, secured by the taxing authority of WCCA. 
 
Student Facilities Revenue Bond 
January 29, 2015 issue.  $1,795,000 due in annual principal installments of $79,302 to $101,028, plus semi-annual 
interest payments through December 15, 2034; interest at 2.565%, secured by residence hall rental receipts.  
 
Lease-Purchase Agreement 
February 15, 2018.   $8,000,000 due in semi-annual installments through December 15, 2038.  Interest rates are 
subject to reset every three or five years.  The agreement is in two parts: 

A)  The Donor Bridge Amount is $2,700,000 with an initial annual interest rate of 3.34%, and 
B)  The Long Term Amount is $5,300,000 with an initial annual interest rate of 3.49% 

 
Debt service requirements at June 30, 2019, were as follows: 

Years Ending 

Student 
Facilities Rev   

Bond Capital Lease 
Student 

Facility Bond 

WNCC/ESU 
Limited Tax 

Refund  Bond   
June 30, Principal Principal Principal Principal Interest Totals 

       
2020 83,449 400,342 189,466 150,000 377,094 1,200,351 
2021 84,520 400,342 194,967 150,000 352,426 1,182,255 
2022 85,604 400,342 200,629 153,750 327,998 1,168,323 
2023 86,701 400,342 206,455 157,500 303,003 1,154,001 
2024 87,813 400,342 212,450 161,250 278,075 1,139,930 
2025-2029 456,252 2,001,711 675,085 502,500 1,002,547 4,638,095 
2030-2034 486,269 2,001,711 - - 532,148 3,020,128 
2035-2038    101,028  1,594,526                -                -    139,520   1,835,074 

 1,471,636 7,599,658 1,679,052 1,275,000   3,312,811  15,338,157 
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Note 11.  Scholarship Allowances 

Scholarship allowances for fiscal years ended June 30 were as follows: 

 
Note 12.  Expenses by Functional Category 

 

 

 

 

 

Scholarship allowances consist of the following: 
1.  Student tuition, room, board, and book waivers, institutional 
2.  Student tuition waivers, statutory (reserves and war orphan) 
3.  Grant Funds (PELL, SEOG, NSG/NOG) credited to student accounts to 
     offset tuition fees, room and board, and bookstore charges. 

 

 2019 2018 
Tuition and fees 1,956,617 1,819,299 
Room, board, and books 1,015,995    999,418 

Total 2,972,612 2,818,717 

Expenses for the financial statements are presented by natural classification (personnel services, operating 
expense, travel, and expensed capital assets).  Both NACUBO and GASB have suggested that for historical 
purposes expenses also be presented by functional classifications.  Expenses by functional classification for the 
fiscal year ended June 30 are as follows: 

 2019 2018 
Educational and general:   

Instructional 8,613,847 9,205,909 
Academic support 3,932,668 3,778,730 
Student services 3,956,185 3,347,735 
Institutional support 6,871,591 6,191,009 
Physical plant 4,009,533 3,308,217 
Depreciation 1,652,459 1,790,391 
Student financial aid 1,640,852 1,645,504 

Auxiliary enterprises   1,515,614   1,317,954 
Total expenses 32,192,749 30,585,449 

Note 13.  Retirement Plan 
The College provides retirement benefits for its employees through a defined contribution plan.  In a defined 
contribution plan, benefits depend solely on amounts contributed to the plan, plus investment earnings.  
Generally, all regular full-time employees are eligible to participate in the plan.   Eligible employees are required 
to participate.  The College matches employee contributions from 6.5% to 8.5% of the employee’s gross annual 
salary.  The participants are 100% vested upon contributing to the plan. 

 2019    2018 
   

Total payroll 12,717,980 11,982,806 
   

Covered payroll 11,291,574 10,424,076 

Employer contributions 925,228 851,628 
   

Employer contributions as a percentage of covered payroll 8.19% 8.17% 
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Note 14.  Deferred Compensation 
The College provides a deferred compensation plan, which was created in accordance with Internal Revenue 
Code Section 457(b).  This plan permits the employee to defer a portion of their salary until future years.  The 
deferred compensation is not available until termination, retirement, death, or unforeseeable emergency. 
 
Pursuant to Neb. Rev. Stat. Section 48-1401, all compensation deferred under this Plan, all property and rights 
purchased with the deferred compensation, and all investment income attributable to the deferred compensation, 
property, or rights shall be held in trust for the exclusive benefit of Participants and their Beneficiaries by the 
Employer until such time as payments are made under the terms of this Plan. 
 
The trust shall be administered in accordance with the requirements of applicable law, regulations and other 
guidance, including Neb. Rev. Stat. Section 48-1401and Treas Regs. Section 1.457-8. 
 
Note 15.  Related Parties 
The College is the beneficiary of a Foundation, which provides support for the College by way of scholarships 
and other direct resources.   The College contracts to provide the Foundation limited services and office space 
without charge in exchange for the support the College receives.  Scholarships and other direct resources 
provided by the Foundation are remitted to the College.  Such amounts totaled $908,051 and $677,695 for the 
fiscal years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018.  In addition, the Foundation holds investments for the College of 
approximately $368,884 and $377,518 as of June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively.   
 
At its Board meeting on April 18, 2019, the Foundation committed to transfer $1,450,000 to the College for 
construction of its Performing Arts Center.  The commitment is payable over a ten year period. 
 
The College also paid the Facilities Corporation, its blended component unit, rent of $1,354,585 in 2019, and 
$775,464 in 2018.  
 
Note 16.  Commitments 
As of June 30, 2019 and 2018 the College had commitments of approximately $3,090,444 and $15,471,601 
respectively with regard to uncompleted construction contracts as detailed below. 
 
In 2017-18, the College began construction of two projects.  The first is the Main Campus Addition and 
Renovation project.  This will create a new Theater, Welcome Center, and Student Learning Commons.  The 
contract amount is $18,528,696.  The balance to complete the project was $3,090,444 and $14,865,125 as of 
June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively. 
 
The second project is the Powerline Indoor Arena on the Alliance campus.  The contract amount was $689,000.  
The balance to complete the project was $0 and $606,476 as of June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively. 
 
The College has a commitment to contribute a total of $125,000 annually to faculty supplemental retirement 
accounts per negotiations between the WCCA Board of Governors and the Western Education Association.   
 
Note 17.  Risk Management 
The College is exposed to various risks of loss from torts; theft of; damage to and destruction of assets; business 
interruption; employee injuries and illnesses; natural disasters; and employee health and accident benefits. 
Commercial insurance coverage is purchased for employee group health and accident benefits. Settled claims 
have not exceeded this commercial coverage in any of the three preceding years. 
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Note 17.  Risk Management (Continued) 
The College has joined with the other five Nebraska community colleges to form the Nebraska Community 
College Insurance Trust, a public entity risk pool currently operating as a common risk management and 
insurance program for its members. The College pays an annual contribution to the Trust for its pooled self- 
insurance coverage of property, liability, workers’ compensation, and associated excess coverages. The Trust 
self-insures to various levels for all categories of covered risk and purchases excess coverage for claims in 
excess of the self-insured limits. If the loss fund is exhausted, the Colleges may be assessed for additional costs.  
 
The insurance year ended June 30, 2019, was the Trust’s twenty-fourth year of operations. In May 2019, the 
Board of Directors of the Trust declared a dividend of $300,000 to be used as an offset to total contributions for 
the 2019 year. The College anticipates no future liabilities for additional incurred losses for all previous years. 
 
Note 18.  Contingency 
The College receives funds from various federal grants principally from the U.S. Department of Education.  
These funds are to be expended in accordance with the provisions of the grants.   
 
Compliance with these grants is subject to audit by the U.S. Department of Education and by independent 
certified public accountants.  Noncompliance could result in sanctions or questioned costs which may result in 
the return of funds to the Department of Education. 
 
Note 19.  Budget Process 
Prior to August 31, the College’s management and Board of Governors prepare a proposed operating budget on 
the cash basis for the general, restricted, and plant funds for the fiscal year commencing July 1.  The budget 
includes proposed expenditures and the means of financing them. 
 
Public hearings are conducted at the September board meeting to obtain taxpayer comments. After the public 
hearings the budget is legally adopted by the Board of Governors through passage of a resolution at the 
September meeting. 
 
Total expenditures may not legally exceed total appropriations and appropriations lapse at year end. 
 
Note 20.  Segment Disclosure 
The College issued the 2015 series revenue bonds to remodel and expand a residence hall on the Scottsbluff 
campus for student living.  Summary information for the Scottsbluff residence halls is presented below. 
 
Condensed Statement of Financial Position  
 2019     2018     
Assets:   

 Current assets 2,000 - 
 Noncurrent assets - - 
 Capital assets    9,175,867   9,462,388 

Total assets   9,177,867   9,462,388 
Liabilities:   

Current liabilities  272,915 266,512 
Noncurrent liabilities   2,877,773   3,150,688 

Total liabilities              3,150,688                   3,417,200 
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Note 20.  Segment Disclosure (Continued) 
Net position:   

Net investment in capital assets 6,025,179 6,045,188 
Restricted - - 
Unrestricted          2,000                 - 

        6,027,179        6,045,188 
 
Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 
   
Operating revenues (pledged against bonds)                567,293                503,733 
Depreciation expense (286,521) (286,521) 
Other operating expenses     (412,445)    (330,588) 

Operating income (loss) (131,673) (113,376) 
   
Nonoperating revenue (expense)   
    Property Taxes - - 
    Interest expense    (91,202)    (98,497) 
Transfers in 595,161 559,828 
Transfers out    (390,295)    (399,999) 
   
Change in net position (18,009) (52,044) 
   
Beginning net position    6,045,188    6,097,232 
Ending net position     6,027,179    6,045,188 

 
Condensed Statement of Cash Flows   

   
Net cash provided by (used in):   

Operating activities 359,714 332,975 
Noncapital financing activities - - 
Capital and related financing activities (357,714)   (358,771) 
Investing activities                  -                  - 
Net increase (decrease) 2,000 (25,796) 

Beginning cash and cash equivalents                  -        25,796 
Ending cash and cash equivalents           2,000                  - 
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Note 21.  Blended Component Unit Disclosure 
The Western Nebraska Community College Facilities Corporation is presented as a blended component unit of 
the Western Community College Area.  Summary information for the Facilities Corporation is presented below. 
 
Condensed Statement of Financial Position  
 2019 2018 
  

WNCC 
Facilities 

Corporation 
 

WNCC 
Facilities 

Corporation 
Assets:     

Current assets        25,859,735 28,889        29,894,851 30,364 
Capital assets 38,891,541 3,373,702 25,538,375 3,502,272 
Other assets        368,884                 -       377,518                 - 

Total assets  65,120,160  3,402,591  55,810,744  3,532,636 
Liabilities:     

 Current liabilities  5,572,803 - 4,646,180 238,286 
Noncurrent liabilities  11,202,089                -   4,477,688  1,083,773 

 Total liabilities 16,774,892 - 9,123,868 1,322,059 
     
Net investment in capital assets 26,866,195 3,373,702 20,647,924 2,181,667 
Restricted 4,598,000 28,889 7,671,815 28,910 
Unrestricted  16,881,073                 -  18,367,137                 - 

  48,345,268  3,402,591  46,686,876  2,210,577 
     

 
Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 
     
Operating revenues  5,968,021 - 4,439,747 - 
Depreciation expense (1,523,889) (128,570) (1,661,821) (128,570) 
Other operating expenses  (30,769,924)                  (725) (28,794,333)                  (725) 

Operating income (loss)  (26,325,792)   (129,295)  (26,016,407)   (129,295) 
     
Nonoperating revenue (expense) 26,859,065 - 26,194,581 - 
Interest expense    (319,678) (33,276)    (194,043) (50,083) 
Transfers in - 1,354,585 - 775,464 
Transfers out (1,354,585)               - (775,464)               - 
Other Income    2,799,382                 -    2,583,981                 - 
     
Change in net position  1,658,392 1,192,014  1,792,648 596,086 

     
Beginning net position  46,686,876  2,210,577  44,894,228  1,614,491 
Ending net position  48,345,268  3,402,591  46,686,876  2,210,577 
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Note 21.  Blended Component Unit Disclosure (Continued) 
 
Condensed Statement of Cash Flows 

     
Net cash provided by (used in):     
     Operating activities (25,525,870) 1,354,585 (24,382,990) 775,464 
     Noncapital financing activities 26,237,295  - 26,187,406  - 
     Capital and related financing activities (5,284,976)  (1,356,060) (2,565,472)  (776,189) 
     Investing activities      148,494                -     (705,655)                - 

Net increase (decrease) (4,425,057) (1,475) (1,466,711) (725) 
Beginning cash and cash equivalents  10,778,255      30,364  12,244,966      31,089 
Ending cash and cash equivalents     6,353,198      28,889  10,778,255      30,364 

 
 
Note 22.  Legal Restriction of Net Position 
Of the $3,823,669 of the net position restricted for capital projects as of June 30, 2019, $1,536,864 was  
restricted by Nebraska statute section 85-1515 for facility fees. 
 
Note 23.  Subsequent Events 
Subsequent events have been evaluated through November 14, 2019 which is the date the financial statements 
were available to be issued. 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ACCOMPANYING INFORMATION 
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WESTERN COMMUNITY COLLEGE AREA 
SCHEDULE OF GENERAL FUND REVENUES 

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 AND 2018 
 
 
                2019                2018 
   
State aid 12,543,209  12,571,341  
Property taxes 10,160,343 9,894,289 
Tuition & Fees 3,753,290 3,845,749 
Other income 624,453 568,501 
(Add to) /use cash reserves    1,488,967           334,224     
  28,570,262  27,214,104 
   

 
The revenues in this schedule are presented on the same basis as the College’s General 
Fund budget and are not on a GASB basis of accounting. In particular, tuition is not 
reduced for scholarship allowances from grants and some other funds. 
 
 
PROPERTY VALUATION AND PROPERTY TAX REVENUE 
 
The property valuation for Western Community College Area as reported by County 
Assessor in late August 2018 for use in property tax revenue for June 30, 2019, was 
$13,057,515,801.  The General Fund property tax rate for June 30, 2019, is 7.7544 cents 
per $100 valuation. 
 
The property valuation for Western Community College Area as reported by County 
Assessor in late August 2017 for use in property tax revenue for June 30, 2018, was 
$12,990,978,312.  The General Fund property tax rate for June 30, 2018, is 7.5436 cents 
per $100 valuation. 
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WESTERN COMMUNITY COLLEGE AREA 
SCHEDULE OF GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES 

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 AND 2018 
 

PROGRAM CLASSIFICATION STRUCTURE 
 

 2019 2018 
INSTRUCTION   
     Personnel services 6,967,626 7,266,946 
     Operating expenses 1,384,640 1,606,549 
     Travel 62,155 66,589 
     Equipment         32,296       180,247 
    8,446,717    9,120,331 
   
ACADEMIC SUPPORT   
     Personnel services 2,998,238 2,771,015 
     Operating expenses 693,198 762,059 
     Travel 67,769 53,836 
     Equipment        13,845        26,402 
   3,773,050   3,613,312 
   
STUDENT SUPPORT   
     Personnel services 2,157,582 2,142,549 
     Operating expenses 645,511 702,369 
     Travel 242,841 214,012 
     Equipment        21,929        10,290 
   3,067,863   3,069,220 
   
INSTITUTIONAL ADMINISTRATION   
     Personnel services 3,553,253 3,087,762 
     Operating expenses 3,117,063 2,979,961 
     Travel 233,461 141,136 
     Equipment      100,249      137,254 
   7,004,026   6,346,113 
   
PHYSICAL PLANT OPERATIONS   
     Personnel services 592,927 546,738 
     Operating expenses 4,684,737 3,621,621 
     Travel 3,474 711 
     Equipment      140,218        13,181 
   5,421,356   4,182,251 
   
STUDENT FINANCIAL SUPPORT   
     Operating expenses      857,250      882,877 
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WESTERN COMMUNITY COLLEGE AREA 
SCHEDULE OF GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES 

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 AND 2018 
 

PROGRAM CLASSIFICATION STRUCTURE 
 
                2019                2018 
   
GRAND TOTAL FOR COLLEGE   
     Personnel services 16,269,625 15,815,010 
     Operating expenses 11,382,400 10,555,436 
     Travel 609,700 476,284 
     Equipment      308,537      367,374 
 28,570,262 27,214,104 
   

The expenditures in this schedule are presented on the same basis as the College’s 
General Fund budget and are not on a GASB basis of accounting. In particular, 
equipment is shown as an expense. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



WESTERN COMMUNITY COLLEGE AREA
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Federal
Federal Grantor/Pass-through Grantor  CFDA Contract Federal

Program Title Number Number Expenditures

U.S. Department of Education:

Direct Programs:
Student Financial Aid Cluster:

Federal Pell Grant Program 2017-18 84.063 P063P171785 10,776           
Federal Pell Grant Program 2018-19 84.063 P063P181785 2,150,814      
Federal Supplemental Educational Opportunity Grants 2018-19 84.007 P007A182463 55,300           
Federal Work Study Program 2018-19 84.033 P033A182463 58,757           
Federal Direct Student Loans 2017-18 84.268 P268K181785 35,731           
Federal Direct Student Loans 2018-19 84.268 P268K191785 1,199,180      

Total Student Financial Aid Cluster 3,510,558      

Passed through Nebraska Department of Education:
Adult Education - Basic Grants to States

Adult Basic Education 84.002 19-2AEF-09-00-941000 163,678         
Institutionalized 84.002 19-2AEF-09-00-941000 13,790           
Volunteer Coordination 84.002 19-2AEV-09-00-941000 24,630           
Adult Education Professional Development 84.002 19-2AES-09-00-941000 7,381             

Total Adult Education Program 209,479         

Direct Programs:
TRIO - Upward Bound

Veterans Upward Bound 2017-18 84.047A P047V170028 33,725           
Veterans Upward Bound 2018-19 84.047A P047V170028 243,235         

TRIO - Student Support Services
Title IV, Student Support Services 2017-18 84.042A P042A150153 52,124           
Title IV, Student Support Services 2018-19 84.042A P042A150153 340,083         
Student Support Services Supplementary 84.042A P042A150153 5,000             

674,166         

Passed through Nebraska Department of Education:
Career and Technical Education - Basic Grants to States 84.048 V048A180027 86,542           

86,542           

Passed through Coordinating Commission

National Aeronautics and Space Administration:

Passed through Board of Regents University of Nebraska:
Education 43.008 NNX15AI09H 8,390             

8,390             

TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 4,489,136      

See accompanying notes to schedule of federal awards.
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WESTERN COMMUNITY COLLEGE AREA 
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 
 
 

NOTE 1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION 
 

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards includes federal award 
activity of Western Community College Area.  The information in this schedule is 
presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal 
Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and 
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance).  Because the schedule 
presents only a selected portion of the operations of the College, it’s not intended to and 
does not present the financial position, changes in net assets, or cash flows of the College. 
 

NOTE 2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 

The schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented on the accrual basis of 
accounting. 

 
NOTE 3. INDIRECT COST RATE 
 
  The College uses an indirect cost rate cost rate of 8% for its TRIO programs. 
 
NOTE 4. SUBRECIPIENTS 
 

Western Community College Area provided no federal awards to subrecipients. 



DANA F. COLE 
& COMPANYLLP 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATIERS 

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED 
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

To the Board of Governors 
Western Community College Area 
Scottsbluff, Nebraska 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Stand­
ards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States of America, the financial statements of 
the business-type activities and the discretely presented component unit of Western Community Col­
lege Area (College) as of June 30, 2019, and the related the related notes to the financial statements, 
which collectively comprise Western Community College Area's basic financial statements, and have 
issued our report thereon dated November 14, 2019. The financial statements of Western Nebraska 
Community College Foundation (Foundation), a discretely presented component unit of the College, 
were not audited in accordance with Government Auditing Standards, and accordingly, this report 
does not include reporting on internal control over financial reporting or instances of reportable non­
compliance associated with the Foundation. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Western Community 
College Area's internal control over financial reporting to determine the audit procedures that are ap­
propriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, 
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Western Community College 
Area's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Western 
Community College Area's internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow man­
agement or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a com­
bination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material 
misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on 
a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by 
those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in 
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control 
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations during our audit, 
we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. 
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 
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Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Western Community College Area's financial 
statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provi­
sions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a 
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an 
opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do 
not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or 
other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compli­
ance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's 
internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance 
with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Ac­
cordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

Scottsbluff, Nebraska 
November 14, 2019 
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DANA F. COLE 
& COMPANYLLP 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH 
MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM AND REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL 

OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE 

To the Board of Governors 
Western Community College Area 
Scottsbluff, Nebraska 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 

We have audited Western Community College Area's compliance with the types of compliance 
requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material 
effect on each of Western Community College Area's major federal programs for the year ended 
June 30, 2019. Western Community College Area's major federal programs are identified in the 
summary of auditors' results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned 
costs. 

Management's Responsibility 

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of federal statutes, regulations, 
and the terms and conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion for each of Western Community College Area's major fed­
eral programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We 
conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Au­
diting Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements 
of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, 
Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards 
and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assur­
ance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above 
that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes 
examining, on a test basis, evidence about Western Community College Area's compliance with 
those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the cir­
cumstances. 

We believe that our audit provides a reasonab-le basis for our opinion on compliance for each major 
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Western Community 
College Area's compliance. 
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Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

In our opinion, Western Community College Area complied, in all material respects, with the compliance 
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal 
programs for the year ended June 30, 2019. 

Other Matters 

The results of our auditing procedures disclosed instances of noncompliance with those requirements, 
which are required to be reported in accordance the Uniform Guidance and which are described in the 
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as items 2019-001. Our opinion on each 
major federal program is not modified with respect to these matters. 

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 

Management of Western Community College Area is responsible for establishing and maintaining ef­
fective internal control over compliance with the requirements referred to above. In planning and per­
forming our audit of compliance, we considered Western Community College Area's internal control 
over compliance with the requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal 
program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the pur­
pose of expressing our opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report 
on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose 
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do 
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Western Community College Area's internal control over 
compliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their as­
signed functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance require­
ment of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance 
is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a 
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal 
program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in 
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control 
over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than 
a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by 
those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the 
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that have not been identified. We identified certain 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance, as described in the accompanying schedule of find­
ings and questioned costs as items 2019-001 that we consider to be significant deficiencies. 

Western Community College Area's responses to the noncompliance findings identified in our audit are 
described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Western Community College 
Area's responses were not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance, and 
accordingly, we express no opinion on the response. 
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The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements 
of Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 

Scottsbluff, Nebraska 
November 14, 2019 
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WESTERN COMMUNITY COLLEGE AREA 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 

SECTION I. SUMMARY OF AUDITORS' RESULTS 

Financial Statements 

Type of auditors' report issued: 

Internal control over financial reporting: 

Material weakness identified: 

Significant deficiencies identified 
that are not considered to be 
material weaknesses: 

Noncompliance matter to the financial 
statements disclosed: 

Federal Awards 

Internal control over major programs: 

Material weakness identified: 

Significant deficiencies identified 
that are not considered to be 
material weaknesses: 

Type of auditors' report issued on 
compliance for major programs: 

Any audit findings disclosed that are 
required to be reported in accord­
ance with 2 CFR Section 200.516(a): 

Identification of major programs: 

Student Financial Aid Cluster 
Federal Pell Grant Program 
Federal Supplemental Educational 

Opportunity Grants 
Federal Work-Study Program 
Federal Direct Student Loans 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish 
between type A and type B programs: 

Auditee qualified as a low-risk auditee: 
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Unmodified 

_Yes_K_No 

_Yes_K_No 

_Yes_K_No 

_Yes_K_No 

_x_ves_No 

Unmodified 

_K_Yes_No 

84.063 

84.007 
84.033 
84.268 

$750,000 

_x_ves_No 



WESTERN COMMUNITY COLLEGE AREA 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 

SECTION II. FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS 

None reported. 

SECTION Ill. FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

2019-001 ENROLLMENT CHANGE IN STUDENT STATUS 
- FEDERAL DIRECT LOANS 84.268 

Criteria 

Per 34 CFR 685.309 and further described in the NSLDS Enrollment 
Reporting Guide, enrollment information must be reported within 30 
days whenever a student's enrollment status changes, unless an En­
rollment Reporting Roster will be submitted within 60 days .. 

Condition and Context 

Of our sample of 60 student files, five cases were noted where enroll­
ment status changes to NSLDS were not reported within the required 
time frame. 

Questioned Costs 

None. 

Students that changed enrollment status were not identified to provide 
changes to NSLDF. 

Potential Effect 

Students that reported for a change in enrollment status could affect in 
school status, deferment, and grace periods, as well as the payment of 
interest and principal. 

Recommendation 

We recommend that the College provide accurate enrollment information 
to NSLDS at least every 60 days on the Enrollment Reporting Roster file 
the College receives from the Department of Education. 
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WESTERN COMMUNITY COLLEGE AREA 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 

SECTION Ill. FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (Continued) 

2019-001 ENROLLMENT CHANGE IN STUDENT STATUS 
- FEDERAL DIRECT LOANS 84.268 (Continued) 

Views of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Action 

As the Registrar's Office receives reports from the Financial Aid Office 
regarding students who are being reported to Return to Title 4, the cor­
rected dates for last date of attendance will be reported to the National 
Student Clearinghouse by the end of each month and prior to the start of 
the next semester. Due diligence will be needed in this area in view of 
the fact that reporting cannot take place if there is a pending file sub­
mission to the Clearinghouse that has not passed the file review for ac­
ceptance. 

Additionally, all graduates will be reported to the Clearinghouse within 
six weeks following graduation. This is to allow some extra time for 
graduates to return required paperwork that may not have been re­
ceived. 
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WESTERN COMMUNITY COLLEGE AREA 
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 

2018-001 EXIT COUNSELING - FEDERAL DIRECT LOANS 84.268 

Condition 

Of our sample of 40 student files, one case was noted where exit counseling information 
was not provided to the withdrawn student within the required time frame. This is not a 
continued finding for the year ended June 30, 2019. 

For the year ended June 30, 2019, our tests did not disclose any such instances. 

2018-002 ALLOWABLE COSTS - FEDERAL DIRECT LOANS 84.268 

Condition 

Of our sample of 40 student files, 1 case was noted where a student received a combi­
nation of subsidized and unsubsidized loans that did not agree with the differences be­
tween the cost of attendance and the students' expected family contribution and other 
financial aid received. This is not a continued finding for the year ended June 30, 2019. 

For the year ended June 30, 2019, our tests did not disclose any such instances. 
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WESTERN COMMUNITY COLLEGE AREA 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

4 
 

This section of Western Community College Area’s annual financial report presents Management’s Discussion 
and Analysis of the College’s financial performance during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018.  Western 
Nebraska Community College Foundation is a legally separate not-for-profit corporation and is reported as a 
discretely presented component unit based on the nature and significance of its relationship to the College.  
Management’s Discussion and Analysis does not contain information on the Foundation. Please read 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis in conjunction with the College’s financial statements, which follow 
this section. 
 
Using this annual report 
This discussion and analysis is intended as an introduction to the College’s basic financial statements and notes to 
the financial statements.   The financial statements include three components: The Statement of Net Position; the 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position; and the Statement of Cash Flows provide 
information on the College as a whole and present a long-term view of the College’s finances. 
 
The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 
One of the most important questions asked about the College’s finances is, “Is Western Community College Area, 
as a whole, better off as a result of the year’s activities?” The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of 
Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position report information on the College as a whole and on its activities 
in a way that helps answer this question. When revenues and other support exceed expenses, the result is an increase 
in net position. When the reverse occurs, the result is a decrease in net position. The relationship between revenues 
and expenses may be thought of as the College’s operating results. 
 
These statements include all assets and liabilities using the accrual basis of accounting, which is similar to the 
accounting used by most private-sector companies. All of the current year’s revenues and expenses are taken into 
account regardless of when cash is received or paid. 
 
These two statements report the College’s net position and changes in it.  You can think of the College’s net 
position (the difference between assets and liabilities) as one way to measure the College’s financial health, or 
financial position. Over time, increases or decreases in the College’s net position are one indicator of whether 
financial health is improving or deteriorating. You will need to consider other nonfinancial factors, however, such 
as enrollment trends, placement results, program quality, condition of buildings, campus safety and other factors 
to assess the overall health of the institution. 
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Figure 1 
Western Community College Area 

Net Position 
(in thousands of dollars) 

 

Table 1 
Western Community College Area 

Net Position 
(in thousands of dollars) 

    
 2018 2017 2016 
    
Current assets 29,925 30,057 25,937 
Noncurrent assets 377 290 288 
Capital assets 29,041 26,263 26,632 

Total assets 59,343 56,610 52,857 
         Deferred Outflows           -           -           - 
Current liabilities 4,885 3,435 3,343 
Noncurrent liabilities   5,561   6,666   7,290 

Total liabilities 10,446 10,101 10,633 
         Deferred Inflows           -           -           - 
Net position    

Invested in capital assets    
net of related debt 22,829 18,973 18,734 

Restricted 7,701 8,744 6,364 
Unrestricted 18,367 18,792 17,126 

  Total net position 48,897 46,509 42,224 
 
Net position of the College increased by 5.1% ($2,388 thousands) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018. 
The increase in net position is due to the following factors: 
 

Net position increased due to construction projects in progress at the end of the year. 
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Table 2 
Western Community College Area 

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and 
Changes in Net Position 
(in thousands of dollars) 

    
 2018 2017 2016 
Operating revenue    

Student tuition and fees 2,312 2,494 2,284 
Grants and contracts 176 39 61 
Sales and charges of educational departments 1 12 26 
Auxiliary enterprises 1,813 2,404 2,125 
Other        138           62         103 

        Total operating revenue      4,440      5,011      4,599 
 

Operating expense    
Personnel services 17,450 17,420 16,858 
Operating expenses 10,423 9,553 9,675 
Travel 536 648 540 
Capital assets not capitalized 386 192 266 
Depreciation     1,790     1,691     1,653 
    Total operating expenses   30,585   29,504   28,992 

Net operating loss (26,145) (24,493) (24,393) 
    

Nonoperating revenue    
    State aid 12,571 12,441 12,591 
    Property taxes 9,894 10,119 9,380 

Grants and contracts 3,444 3,606 3,884 
Other receipts - - - 
Investment income 284 155 91 
Interest on capital debt      (244)     (216)     (219) 
    Net nonoperating revenues   25,949   26,105   25,727 
    
Capital appropriations 2,798 2,664 2,430 

    Gain (loss) on sale of capital assets    (214)                                                     9                                                     2                                           
        Net other income    2,584    2,673    2,432 

    
    Increase in net position 2,388 4,285 3,766 
    

Net position    
    Net position beginning of year   46,509   42,224   38,458 
    Net position end of year   48,897   46,509   42,224 
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Figure 2 
Western Community College Area 

Revenues 
(in thousands of dollars) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

   
 

  
  
   

The change in revenues was the result of the following: 
 

Operating revenue decreased by 11.4% ($571 thousands), primarily due to decreases in tuition 
and fees revenues, and auxiliary enterprises. 
 
Nonoperating revenue decreased by 0.5% ($128 thousands).  State aid increased by 1.0%, while 
property taxes decreased by 2.2%.   Government grants decreased by 4.5%. 

 
Other income decreased by 3.3% ($89 thousands), primarily due to a loss on disposal of assets 
related to the Main Building Addition and Renovation project. 

 
 

Figure 3 
Western Community College Area 

Expenses 
(in thousands of dollars) 
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The change in expenses was the result of the following: 
 

Total expenses increased 3.7% ($1,109 thousands) for fiscal year ended June 30, 2018.  Personnel 
services increased 0.2% ($30 thousands).  Operating expenses increased 9.1% ($870 thousands).  
Depreciation increased by 5.9% ($99 thousands).  Other expenses increased by 10.4% ($110 
thousands). 

 
The Statement of Cash Flows 
Another way to assess the financial health of the College is to look at the Statement of Cash Flows. The 
purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows is to provide relevant information about cash receipts and cash 
payments made by the College during a fiscal year. The Statement also helps users to assess the College’s: 

Ability to generate future net cash flows 
Ability to meet its obligations as they come due 
Needs for external financing 
 

Table 3 
Western Community College Area 

Cash Flows 
(in thousands of dollars) 

    
 2018 2017 2016 
Cash provided by (used in):    

Operating activities (23,607) (22,270) (23,439) 
Noncapital financing activities 26,187 25,666 25,552 
Capital and related financing activities (3,342) 398 323 
Investing activities    (705)  (3,917)  (2,172) 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (1,467)  (123)  264  
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year  12,276   12,399   12,135  
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year  10,809   12,276   12,399  

 
The change in cash flow was the result of the following: 

 
Cash used by operating activities increased $1,337 thousands (6.0%) primarily due to an increase in 
operating expenses and a decrease in auxiliary receipts. 
 
Cash provided by noncapital financing activities increased $521 thousands (2.0%) due to increases in 
property tax receipts and State aid appropriations.   
 
Cash used by capital and related financing activities increased $3,740 thousands primarily due to an 
increase in acquisition and construction of capital assets, and an increase in principal paid on capital 
debt.  
 
Cash used by investing activities decreased $3,212 thousands (82.0%) due primarily to a net decrease 
in the amount of CDs purchased compared to the prior year. 
 
Cash and cash equivalents decreased for the 2017-18 year by $1,467 thousands (12.0%) primarily 
because of construction costs. 
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Capital asset and debt administration 
  
Capital Assets 

Table 4 
Western Community College Area 

Capital Assets 
(Net of depreciation, in thousands of dollars) 

    
 2018 2017 2016 
    
Land and improvements 2,070 2,070 1,998 
Buildings 20,899 21,698 22,400 
Equipment 2,210  2,437  2,201  
Construction in progress   3,861        58        33 
 29,040  26,263  26,632  

 
 
Major capital additions funded this year and the source of resources that funded the acquisition include (in 
thousands of dollars): 
 

Equipment purchases from general operating funds 478 
Equipment purchases from grant funds 53 
Equipment purchases from auxiliary funds 182 
Construction in progress from capital improvement funds 4,266 

 
 
 
The College has planned capital expenditures for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2019, of approximately 
$17,108 thousands. 
 

Equipment financed by the General Fund, student fees and capital grants will total $1,977 
thousands. 
 
Other capital construction projects of $15,131 thousands will be financed from the Capital 
Improvement Fund, ADA/Hazardous Materials Fund, and a Capital Lease. 

 
 
More detailed information about the College’s capital assets is presented in Note 6 of the financial 
statements. 
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Debt 
At June 30, 2018 and 2017, the College had $6,211 and $7,290 thousands debt outstanding.  
 

Table 5 
Western Community College Area 

Outstanding Debt 
(in thousands of dollars) 

    
 2018 2017 2016 
    
2012 Student facility bond 1,863 2,042 2,216 
2012 WNCC Facilities Corporation bond 1,321 2,045 2,256 
2013 Limited tax facility refunding bonds 1,421 1,568 1,710 
2015 Student facility revenue bond 1,554 1,635 1,716 
2018 Capital lease payable       52          -          - 
   6,211   7,290   7,898 

 
Economic factors that will affect the future 
The economic position of Western Community College Area is closely tied to that of the State.  For 2018-
2019, the Nebraska Legislature decreased State Aid to Western Nebraska Community College in the 
amount of $203,087.   

 
The College Board of Governors adopted a total college property tax levy of 9.8904 cents for 2018-2019.  
Valuations for the 13-county service area increased 0.51%, which also increased the total college property 
tax request by $337,162 at that levy. 

 
Resident and border states tuition rates were increased $2.50 per credit hour while non-resident tuition 
rates remained unchanged. 
 
Financial contact 
The College’s financial statements are designed to present users with a general overview of the  
College’s finances and demonstrate the College’s accountability.  If you have questions about the  
report or need additional information, contact the College’s Vice President of Administrative Services, 
William D. Knapper, at 1601 East 27th Street, Scottsbluff, Nebraska 69361, or call (308) 635-3606. 



Western Community College Area

June 30, 2018 and 2017

2018 2017
College Foundation College Foundation

Assets
Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 10,745,107         1,063,914           12,248,914         588,977              
Restricted cash 63,512                -                          27,141                -                          
Short-term investments 12,018,728         5,345,619 11,172,189         4,943,223
Property taxes receivable 4,688,453           -                          4,820,867           -                          
Accounts receivable (net) 1,352,376           1,226,306           1,136,032           1,706,585           
Interest receivable 106,586              2,190                  50,385                1,530                  
Inventories 235,982              -                          238,562              -                          
Prepaid expense 714,471              -                          363,011              -                          

Total current assets 29,925,215         7,638,029           30,057,101         7,240,315           

Non-current Assets
Deposit with Foundation 377,518              -                          290,490              -                          
Capital assets - net 29,040,647         175,946              26,262,786         183,946              

Total non-current assets 29,418,165         175,946              26,553,276         183,946              

Total assets 59,343,380         7,813,975           56,610,377         7,424,261           

Liabilities
Current liabilities

Accounts payable 2,262,733           125,991              802,694              110,511              
Accrued salaries 1,723,659           -                          1,789,880           -                          
Accrued interest 13,422                -                          15,089                -                          
Deposits 43,040                -                          31,115                -                          
Bonds payable - current 649,594              -                          623,740              -                          
Annuity payable - current -                          12,907                -                          12,059                
Deposits held in custody for others 192,018              377,518              172,720              290,490              

Total current liabilities 4,884,466           516,416              3,435,238           413,060              

Non-current liabilities
Bonds payable 5,509,461           -                          6,666,420           -                          
Capital lease payable 52,000                -                          -                          -                          
Annuity payable -                          208,120              -                          221,029              

Total non-current liabilities 5,561,461           208,120              6,666,420           221,029              

Total liabilities 10,445,927         724,536              10,101,658         634,089              

Net Position
Net investment in capital assets 22,829,591         175,946              18,972,626         183,946              
Restricted for:

Expendable
Loans 134,359              -                          133,269              -                          
Capital projects 6,951,648           -                          8,084,354           -                          
Other 448,137              3,743,102           243,430              3,509,194           

Nonexpendable 166,581              1,768,047           282,595              1,673,680           
Unrestricted 18,367,137         1,402,344           18,792,445         1,423,352           

Total net position 48,897,453         7,089,439           46,508,719         6,790,172           

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

Statements of Net Position
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Western Community College Area
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

For the Years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017

2018 2017
College Foundation College Foundation

REVENUES
Operating revenues

Tuition and fees 2,311,604           -                          2,494,636           -                          
Nongovernmental grants and contracts 176,350              -                          39,294                -                          
Sales and services of educational departments 651                     -                          12,335                -                          
Auxiliary enterprises 1,813,151           -                          2,403,508           -                          
Other operating income 137,991              28,800                61,807                28,800                

Total operating revenues 4,439,747           28,800                5,011,580           28,800                

EXPENSES
Operating expenses

Personnel services 17,450,018         -                          17,420,369         -                          
Operating expenses 10,422,451         811,232              9,552,801           838,216              
Travel 536,448              -                          648,601              -                          
Noncapitalized capital assets 386,141              -                          191,942              -                          
Depreciation 1,790,391           8,000                  1,690,759           8,000                  

Total operating expenses 30,585,449         819,232              29,504,472         846,216              
Operating income (loss) (26,145,702)        (790,432)             (24,492,892)        (817,416)             

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Governmental appropriations

State aid 12,571,341         -                          12,440,842         -                          
Property taxes 9,894,289           -                          10,118,576         -                          

Governmental grants and contracts
Federal 3,175,961           -                          3,295,847           -                          
State 268,878              -                          310,549              -                          

Gifts -                          684,713              -                          947,633              
Investment income 284,112              404,986              154,670              504,753              
Interest on capital assets - related debt (244,126)             -                          (215,981)             -                          

Net nonoperating revenues (expenses) 25,950,455         1,089,699           26,104,503         1,452,386           
Income before other revenues, (expenses), gains,
or (losses) (195,247)             299,267              1,611,611           634,970              

OTHER INCOME
Capital appropriations 2,798,394           -                          2,663,407           -                          
Gain (loss) on disposal of capital assets (214,413)             -                          9,371                  -                          

Total other income 2,583,981           -                          2,672,778           -                          

Increase in net position 2,388,734           299,267              4,284,389           634,970              

NET POSITION
Net position - beginning of year  46,508,719         6,790,172           42,108,316         6,271,216           
Prior period adjustment -                          -                          116,014              (116,014)             
Net position - beginning of year restated 46,508,719         6,790,172           42,224,330         6,155,202           
Net position - end of year 48,897,453         7,089,439           46,508,719         6,790,172           

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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2018 2017
Cash flows from operating activities

Tuition and fees 2,096,414               2,324,393               
Payments for personnel services (17,516,239)           (17,492,699)           
Payments for operating expenses (8,590,996)             (8,606,703)             
Payments for non-capitalized assets (386,141)                (191,942)                
Payments for financial aid awards (1,131,876)             (925,967)                
Collection of loans to students and employees 45,020                    38,656                    
Loans issued to students and employees (42,700)                  (43,136)                  
Sales and services of education departments 651                         12,335                    
Auxiliary enterprise receipts 1,780,297               2,403,508               
Other receipts (payments) 138,044                  211,078                  

Net cash(used) in operating activities (23,607,526)           (22,270,477)           

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities
State aid appropriation 12,571,341             12,440,842             
Property taxes 10,059,195             9,697,684               
Collection of loans to students 1,303,607               1,181,665               
Loans issued to students (1,303,607)             (1,181,665)             
Federal grants and awards 2,916,851               2,956,408               
Gifts and grants for other than capital purposes 640,019                  571,034                  

Net cash provided by (used in) noncapital financing activities 26,187,406             25,665,968             

Cash flows from capital financing activities
Property taxes - capital improvement fund 2,765,902               2,536,132               
Purchase of capital assets (528,012)                (1,102,247)             
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (4,262,336)             (219,406)                
Proceeds for capital debt issue -                             -                             
Principal paid on capital debt (1,079,105)             (608,186)                
Net proceeds from the sale of capital asset 7,683                      9,371                      
Interest paid on capital debt (245,793)                (217,183)                

Net cash provided by (used in) capital financing activities (3,341,661)             398,481                  

Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments 17,796,816             18,439,034             
Interest on investments 227,911                  130,050                  
Purchase of investments (18,730,382)           (22,486,176)           

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (705,655)                (3,917,092)             

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (1,467,436)             (123,120)                

Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of year 12,276,055             12,399,175             

Cash and cash equivalents - end of year 10,808,619             12,276,055             
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2018 2017
Reconciliation of net operating income (loss) to
net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

Operating income (loss) (26,145,702)           (24,492,892)           
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash

provided by (used in) operating activities:
Depreciation 1,790,391               1,690,760               
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Accounts receivable (330,695)                121,186                  
Student and staff notes receivable 2,320                      (4,480)                    
Inventories 2,580                      (61,038)                  
Prepaid expenses (351,461)                398,130                  
Accounts payable 1,460,040               167,767                  
Accrued salaries (66,221)                  (72,330)                  
Other Liabilities -                             -                             
Deposits held for others 31,222                    (17,580)                  

Net cash used in operating activities (23,607,526)           (22,270,477)           

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

  

For the Years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017
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Note 1.  Organization and summary of significant accounting policies 
Western Community College Area was established July 1, 1973, by legislative action. The Area encompasses 
the 13 counties of the Nebraska panhandle. An eleven member Board of Governors is the College’s ruling body 
and establishes the policies and procedures by which the College is governed.   

 
Reporting Entity 

 The concept underlying the definition of the financial reporting entity is that elected officials are 
accountable to their constituents for their actions. As required by accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States of America, the financial reporting entity includes both the primary government and all of 
its component units as defined by Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 14 
The Financial Reporting Entity. An organization other than a primary government serves as a nucleus for a 
reporting entity when it issues separate financial statements.  Western Community College Area is not a 
component unit of another primary governmental reporting entity.  

        
 The Western Nebraska Community College Facilities Corporation (WNCCFC) is a legally separate, 

nonprofit corporation which is a component unit of Western Nebraska Community College. WNCCFC was 
formed by the College in 2003 to acquire property to be leased to and purchased by the College. The Board 
of Governors of the College appoints the members of the Board of WNCCFC. The WNCCFC provides 
services entirely to the College. The services provided by WNCCFC are so intertwined with the College that 
the WNCCFC is in substance the same as the College and it is reported as part of the College and blended 
into the College’s financial statements. 

  
College Foundation 

       Under GASB 39, Determining Whether Certain Organizations are Component Units - an amendment of 
GASB 14, legally separate organizations meeting certain criteria should be discretely presented as 
component units.  The criteria are: 
1. The economic resources received or held by the separate organization are entirely or almost entirely for 

the direct benefit of the College or its constituents (e.g., students, faculty and staff). 
2. The College is entitled to, or has the ability to otherwise access, a majority of the economic resources 

received or held by the separate organization. 
3. The economic resources received or held by an individual organization that the College is entitled to, or 

has the ability to otherwise access, are significant to the College. 
 

 The Western Nebraska Community College Foundation (Foundation) is a legally separate, tax exempt 
component unit of Western Community College Area. The Foundation acts primarily as a fundraising 
organization to provide support to the College.  The Foundation is governed by a volunteer Board.  
Although the College does not control the timing or amounts of receipts from the Foundation, the majority 
of resources, or income thereon, which the Foundation holds and invests, is restricted to the activities of the 
College by the donors.  Because restricted resources held by the Foundation can only be used by, or for the 
benefit of the College, the Foundation is considered a component unit of the College and is discretely 
presented in the College’s financial statements.   

       
       These financial statements do not contain disclosures of information of the Foundation.  Complete financial 

statements for the Foundation can be obtained from the Foundation offices located in the John N. Harms 
Center at 2620 College Park, Scottsbluff, NE 69361.    
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Note 1.  Organization and summary of significant accounting policies (Continued) 
Basis of Accounting 

 The College’s financial statements have been prepared using the economic resources measurement focus 
and the accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues, expenses, assets, deferred outflows of 
resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources resulting from exchange and exchange-like 
transactions should be recognized when the exchange takes place. 

 
       In accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 20, Accounting and 

Financial Reporting for Proprietary Funds and Other Governmental Entities That Use Proprietary Fund 
Accounting, which has been superseded by GASB Statement No. 62, Codification of Accounting and 
Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements, 
the College has elected to follow all applicable GASB pronouncements,  including all National Council of 
Governmental Accounting (NCGA) statements and interpretations currently in effect, as well as all 
Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) statements and interpretations issued after November 30, 
1989, except those that conflict or contradict GASB pronouncements. 

 
       In addition to the GASB Statements previously discussed, the significant accounting policies followed by 

the College are described below: 
 
 GASB Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements – and Management’s Discussion and Analysis- for 

State and Local Governments, establishes financial reporting requirements that require the basic financial 
statements and required supplementary information for general purpose governments should consist of: 
management’s discussion and analysis, basic financial statements, and required supplementary information. 

 
 GASB Statement No. 35 – Basic financial Statements – and Management’s Discussion and Analysis – for 

Public Colleges and Universities – an amendment of GASB Statement No. 34, establishes accounting and 
financial reporting standards for public colleges and universities within the financial reporting guidelines of 
GASB 34.  In accordance with this statement, the College presents statements of net position, revenues, 
expenses, and changes in net position, and cash flows on college-wide basis.  The objective of this statement 
is to enhance the understandability of usefulness of the external financial reports issued. 

 
 GASB Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of 

Resources, and Net Position, establishes a new statement of net position format that reports separately all 
assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, and net position (which is 
the net residual amount of the other elements).  The Statement requires deferred outflows of resources and 
deferred inflows of resources to be reported separately from assets and liabilities.   

 
       GASB Statement No 65, Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities, amends or supersedes the 

accounting and financial reporting guidance for certain items previously required to be reported as assets or 
liabilities.  The objective is to either properly clarify certain items that were previously reported as assets 
and liabilities as deferred outflows of resources or deferred inflows of resources or recognize certain items 
that were previously reported as assets and liabilities as outflows of resources (expenses) or inflows of 
resources (revenues).   

 
The Foundation is a private nonprofit organization that reports under FASB standards, including FASB 
Statement No. 958-205, Financial Reporting for Not-for-Profit Organizations.  As such, certain revenue 
recognition criteria and presentation features are different from GASB revenue recognition criteria and  
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Note 1.  Organization and summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)    
presentation features. No modifications have been made to the Foundation’s financial information in the 
College’s financial reporting entity for these differences. 
 

      Basis of Presentation 
      The accompanying financial statements are presented in accordance with accounting principles generally 

accepted in the United States of America as prescribed by Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
(GASB). 

  
       Pursuant to the provisions of GASB Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements – Management’s 

Discussion and Analysis – State and Local Governments, as amended by GASB Statement No. 35, Basic 
Financial Statements – and Management’s Discussion and Analysis – for Public Colleges and Universities, 
the full scope of the College’s activities is considered to be a single business-type activity (BTA) and 
accordingly, is reported within a single column in the basic financial statements. 

 
Donated Assets and Services 

       Donated materials or equipment, when received, are reflected as contributions in the accompanying 
statements at their estimated fair market values at the date of receipt. 

 
 Budgets 
       Budgets are prepared on the same basis of accounting except that capital assets acquired are recorded as 

expenses and depreciation is not recorded. 
 

 Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 The College follows GASB No. 31 (as amended by GASB No. 40), Accounting and Financial Reporting for 

Certain Investments and for External Investment Pools.  GASB 31 requires the College's investments to be 
recorded at market value with the changes in the market value of investments reported as investment income 
in the statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in fund equity.  Investments are recorded at the market 
value as determined by quoted market prices. 

 
       Cash deposits, primarily interest bearing, are covered by federal depository insurance or pledged collateral 

of unregistered U.S. Government securities held by various depositories.  Investments at June 30, 2018 and 
2017 were in unregistered U.S. Government securities and Federal Agency obligations held in the College's 
name by the custodial banks. 

 
       For the purposes of the statements of cash flows, the College considers all highly liquid debt instruments 

purchased with a maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. 
  

Investments 
Investments are reported at fair value. 

 
 Receivables 
       Receivables consist of tuition and fees charges to students and charges for auxiliary enterprises’ sales and 

services. Receivables also include amounts due from the federal government, state and local governments, 
and private sources in connection with reimbursement of allowable expenditures made pursuant to contracts 
and grants, and pledges that are verifiable, measurable, and expected to be collected and available for 
expenditures for which the resource provider’s conditions have been satisfied. Receivables are recorded net 
of estimated uncollectible amounts. 
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Note 1.  Organization and summary of significant accounting policies (Continued) 
Inventories 

 Inventories are valued at the lower-of-cost or market value as determined by the first-in, first-out (FIFO) 
method. 

 
Bond Issuance Costs 

 Bond issuance costs are expenditures related to the issuance of bonds.  With the implementation of GASB 
65, these costs are now expensed when incurred. 

 
 Capital Assets 
 Capital assets are stated at cost at date of acquisition, or fair value at date of donation in the case of gifts. 

The College capitalizes assets that have a value or cost in excess of $5,000 at the date of acquisition and an 
expected useful life of one or more years. Library books are expensed. 

 
Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the useful lives of the assets. The following 
estimated useful lives are used to compute depreciation: 

  Buildings      40 years 
  Building improvements   20 years 
  Building content replacements  10 years 
  Office furniture     10 years 
  Instructional equipment     7 years 

Other equipment      5 years 
  Office equipment        3 years 
  Vehicles         3 years 

 
       Land, artwork, and other collectible assets are not depreciated. 

        
       Restricted Assets 

Restricted assets represent assets whose use is restricted by external parties or by law through constitutional 
provisions or enabling legislation. 
 
Restricted/Unrestricted Resource Policy 
If both restricted and unrestricted resources are available to finance a program, restricted resources are used 
first unless the restricted resources require unrestricted resources to be used first. 
 
Unearned Revenue 
Unearned revenue is revenue received but not earned as of the end of the fiscal year. 
  
Operating Versus Nonoperating  
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services in connection with the College's 
ongoing operations.  The principal operating revenues are charges to customers for services.  Operating 
expenses include the cost of service, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets.  All 
revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses. 

 
Compensated Absences 
Vacation and personal leave meet the criteria in GASB Statement No. 16 and are included in accrued 
compensated absences. The criteria for accruing compensated absences are met when employee’s rights to 
receive compensation are attributable to services already rendered and it is probable that the employer will  
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Note 1.  Organization and summary of significant accounting policies (Continued) 
compensate the employee through paid time off or some other means, such as cash at termination or 
retirement. 
 

       Noncurrent Liabilities 
       Noncurrent liabilities include accrued salaries for early retirement, deferred revenue, deposits held in 

custody for others, and notes and bonds payable. 
 

Net Position 
       The net position of the College is broken down into three categories:  (1) net invested in capital assets, (2) 

restricted component of net position, and (3) unrestricted component of net position. 
 

       Net invested in capital assets - Consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the 
outstanding balances of bonds, mortgages, notes, or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, 
construction, or improvement of those assets. Deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets or related debt 
are included in this component of net position.  
 

       Restricted - Consists of restricted assets reduced by liabilities and deferred inflows of resources related to 
those assets. Generally, a liability relates to restricted assets if the asset results from a resource flow that also 
results in the recognition of a liability or if the liability will be liquidated with the restricted assets reported. 

 
       Unrestricted - Consists of assets that do not meet the definition of restricted net position or net position 

invested in capital assets, net of related debt. 
 
       It is the College's policy to first use restricted components of net position prior to the use of unrestricted 

components of net position when an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and 
unrestricted components of net position are available. 

 
       Restricted Net Position 
 Restricted net position is further broken down into expendable and nonexpendable portions. 
 

Restricted net position – expendable includes resources in which the College is legally or contractually 
obligated to spend in accordance with restrictions imposed by third parties. 
 
Restricted net position – nonexpendable consists of endowment funds in which the donors have stipulated, 
as a condition of the gift instrument, that the principal is to be maintained inviolate and in perpetuity and 
invested for the purpose of producing present and future income. 

 
Scholarship Allowances 
Student tuition and fees revenues and certain other revenues from College charges are reported net of 
scholarship allowances in the accompanying statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position. 
The scholarship allowance is the difference between the actual charge for goods and services provided by 
the College and the amount that is paid by students or by third parties on the students’ behalf. Student 
financial assistance grants, such as Pell grants and other federal, state or nongovernmental programs, are 
recorded as either operating or nonoperating revenues in the accompanying statements of revenues, 
expenses, and changes in net position. To the extent that revenues from these programs are used to satisfy 
tuition, fees, and other charges, the College has recorded them as scholarship allowances.  
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Note 1.  Organization and summary of significant accounting policies (Continued) 
Revenue and Expense Recognition 
The College presents its revenues and expenses as operating or nonoperating based on recognition 
definitions from GASB Statement No. 9 Reporting Cash Flows of Proprietary and Nonexpendable Trust 
Funds and Governmental Entities That Use Proprietary Fund Accounting. Operating activities are those 
activities that are necessary and essential to the mission of the College.  Operating revenues include all 
charges to customers, grants received for student financial assistance, and interest earned on loans. Grants 
received for student financial assistance are considered operating revenues because they provide resources 
for student charges and such programs are necessary and essential to the mission of the College.  Revenues 
from non-exchange transactions and state appropriations that represent subsidies or gifts to the College, as 
well as investment income, are considered nonoperating since these are investing, capital or noncapital 
financing activities.  Operating expenses are all expense transactions incurred other than those related to 
investing, capital or noncapital financing activities. Revenues received for capital financing activities, as 
well as related expenses are considered neither operating nor non-operating activities and are presented after 
nonoperating activities on the accompanying statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net assets. 
   
Use of Estimates 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and 
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts 
of revenues and expenses during the reported period.  Actual results could differ from those estimates. 
 

Note 2.  Cash and Investments 
The College can invest, after proper consideration of the requirements for the availability of money, funds of the 
College in securities the nature of which individuals of prudence, discretion, and intelligence acquire or retain in 
dealing with the property of another. 

  
Interest Rate Risk 
The College does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment maturities as a means of 
managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates. 
 
Credit Risk 
In accordance with the College’s investment policy, funds may be invested, within certain limits, in FDIC 
insured banks, U.S. Treasury and federal agencies, and certificates of deposit issued by FDIC insured banks.  
 
Custodial Credit Risk – Deposits 
Custodial credit risk for deposits of the College is the risk that the College’s deposits would not be covered 
by depository insurance. Deposits were reflected in the accounts of the banks at $24,140,106 and 
$24,207,615 as of June 30, 2018 and 2017.  All of the balances for June 30, 2018 and 2017 were insured or 
fully collateralized. 
 
Custodial Credit Risk – Investments 
For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of a failure of the counter party, the 
College will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the 
possession of an outside party. The College has no custodial credit risk in its investment portfolio. 
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 Note 2.  Cash and Investments (Continued) 
 

Investments at June 30, 2018 and 2017, are summarized as follows: 
 

 
Investment Type 

    2018 
Fair Value 

    2017 
Fair Value 

   
Certificates of deposit 10,656,738 10,632,506 
Money market accounts                      1,361,990      539,683 

 12,018,728  11,172,189 
 

Note 3.  Property Tax Receivable 
Property taxes levied for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2018, were due December 31, 2017, and became 
delinquent in May and September of 2018.  Property tax revenues, based on the assessed valuation and the levy 
set, are recognized in the current fiscal year even though part of the property tax revenue is not delinquent or 
collected until the following fiscal year. Property taxes are recognized net of the county collection fee of 1%.  
The assessed valuation and levies in cents per $100 of assessed valuation for the fiscal years ended June 30 were 
as follows: 
 

 2018 2017 
Assessed valuation August 2018 and 2017 12,990,978,312 12,516,070,016 
Levy in cents per $100 of assessed valuation 
      General Fund 7.5436 7.9637 
       Capital Improvement Fund 2.1379 2.0896 
       ADA/Hazardous Waste Fund   0.0000   0.0000 

Total   9.6815 10.0533 
 

The amount of property tax receivable at June 30 was as follows: 
 2018 2017 

        General Fund 3,653,186 3,818,092 
       Capital Improvement Fund 1,035,267 1,002,775 
       ADA/Hazardous Waste Fund                              -                                           -              

Total  4,688,453  4,820,867 
   

The following amounts, which are included in the property tax receivable amount, were held as cash 
by county treasurers at June 30. 

   
 2018 2017 

        General Fund 107,844 108,591 
       Capital Improvement Fund 30,546 28,488 
       ADA/Hazardous Waste Fund                               -                               - 

Total 138,390 137,079 
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Note 4.  Accounts Receivable 
Accounts receivable at June 30 were as follows: 
 2018 2017 

Federal non-exchange grants 349,576 368,510 
Tuition and fees 569,167 351,397 
State grants 118,320 211,418 
Other                   315,313                   204,707 

Total 1,352,376 1,136,032 
   

 
Note 5.  Inventories 
Inventories at June 30 were as follows:   
 2018 2017 

Books and supplies 183,711    238,562           
          Project car                      52,271            - 

Total 235,982 238,562 
   

 
 
Note 6.  Capital Assets 
Capital asset activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018 was as follows: 

 
June 30, 

2017 
 

Additions 
 

Deletions 
June 30, 

2018 
Capital assets, not being depreciated    

Land 1,004,688 - - 1,004,688 
Artwork & collectibles 190,861 - - 190,861 
Construction in progress        57,414  4,266,432     462,413   3,861,433 

Total   1,252,963  4,266,432     462,413   5,056,982 
Capital assets, being depreciated    

Land improvements 2,034,519 195,606 180,000 2,050,125 
Buildings 41,330,029 200,709 168,065 41,362,673 
Equipment   9,271,467     594,111      533,169   9,332,409 

Total 52,636,015     990,426      881,234 52,745,207 
Less accumulated depreciation    

Land improvements 969,412 75,854 60,750 984,516 
Buildings 19,631,814 897,024 65,220 20,463,618 
Equipment   7,024,966       817,513     529,071     7,313,408   

Total 27,626,192  1,790,391     655,041   28,761,542 
Capital assets, net 26,262,786  3,466,467     688,606 29,040,647 
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Note 6.  Capital Assets (Continued) 
Capital asset activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017, was as follows: 

 
June 30, 

2016 
 

Additions 
 

Deletions 
June 30, 

2017 
Capital assets, not being depreciated    

Land 849,878 154,810 - 1,004,688 
Artwork & collectibles 190,861 - - 190,861 
Construction in progress        32,984     219,406     194,976        57,414 

Total   1,073,723     374,216     194,976   1,252,963 
Capital assets, being depreciated    

Land improvements 2,034,519 - - 2,034,519 
Buildings 41,135,053 194,976 - 41,330,029 
Equipment   8,704,023     947,736     380,292   9,271,467 

Total 51,873,595  1,142,712     380,292 52,636,015 
Less accumulated depreciation    

Land improvements 886,860 82,552 - 969,412 
Buildings 18,735,070 896,744 - 19,631,814 
Equipment   6,693,496       711,463     379,993     7,024,966   

Total 26,315,426  1,690,759     379,993   27,626,192 
Capital assets, net 26,631,892   (173,831)     195,275 26,262,786 

  
Note 7.  Accrued Salaries 
Accrued salaries for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, were composed of the following: 

      2018       2017 
Accrued salaries 1,112,462 1,188,173 
Accrued compensated absences     611,197     601,707 

Total accrued salaries  1,723,659  1,789,880 
 
Note 8.   Long-Term Liabilities 
Long-term liability activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, was as follows:  
 
 June 30, 

2017 
 

Additions 
 

Reductions 
June 30, 

2018 
Current 
Portion 

      
          Student Facility Bond 2,042,095 - 178,924 1,863,171 184,119 
          Student Facility Revenue Bond 1,635,378 - 81,349 1,554,029 82,393 
          WNCC Facilities Corp Bond 2,045,187 - 724,582 1,320,605 236,832 
          WNCC/ESU #13 Bond 1,567,500               -     146,250 1,421,250  146,250 
          Lease-Purchase Agreement                -     52,000                -      52,000             - 
               Total bonds and notes payable 7,290,160     52,000  1,131,105 6,211,055  649,594 
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Note 8.   Long-Term Liabilities (Continued) 
Long-term liability activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017, was as follows: 

 
 June 30, 

2016 
 

Additions 
 

Reductions 
June 30, 

2017 
Current 
Portion 

      
          Student Facility Bond 2,215,970 - 173,875 2,042,095 178,924 
          Student Facility Revenue Bond 1,715,698 - 80,320 1,635,378 81,349 
          WNCC Facilities Corp Bond 2,256,678 - 211,491 2,045,187 217,217 
          WNCC/ESU #13 Bond 1,710,000               -     142,500 1,567,500  146,250 
               Total bonds and notes payable 7,898,346               -     608,186 7,290,160  623,740 
                

 
Note 9.  Debt Service Requirements 
Student Facility Bond 
February 10, 2012 issue.  $2,963,045 due in semi-annual installments of $118,259 through April 30, 2027; interest 
at 2.883%, secured by residence hall rental receipts. 

 
WNCC Facilities Corp Bond  
February 10, 2012 issue.  $3,154,325 due in quarterly installments of $67,464 through December 15, 2025; interest 
at 2.68%, secured by the taxing authority of WCCA.               

 
WNCC/ESU #13 Limited Tax Facility Refunding Bonds 
June 17, 2013 issue.  $2,148,750 due in annual installments of $146,250 to $175,500 through June 15, 2027; 
interest at 0.40% to 2.70%, secured by the taxing authority of WCCA. 
 
Student Facilities Revenue Bond 
January 29, 2015 issue.  $1,795,000 due in annual principal installments of $79,302 to $101,028, plus semi-annual 
interest payments through December 15, 2034; interest at 2.565%, secured by residence hall rental receipts.  
 
Lease-Purchase Agreement 
February 15, 2018.   $8,000,000 due in semi-annual installments through December 15, 2038.  Interest rates are 
subject to reset every three or five years.  The agreement is in two parts: 
 

A)  The Donor Bridge Amount is $2,700,000 with an initial annual interest rate of 3.34%, and 
B)  The Long Term Amount is $5,300,000 with an initial annual interest rate of 3.49% 
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Note 9.  Debt Service Requirements (Continued) 
Debt service requirements at June 30, 2018, were as follows: 

Years Ending 

Student 
Facilities 
Revenue  

Bond 
Student 

Facility Bond 

WNCC 
Facilities 

Corp Bond 

WNCC/ESU 
Limited Tax 
Refunding   

Bond   
June 30, Principal Principal Principal Principal Interest Totals 

       
2019 82,393 184,119 236,831 146,250 153,757 803,350 
2020 83,449 189,466 243,243 150,000 137,971 804,129 
2021 84,520 194,967 249,828 150,000 121,405 800,720 
2022 85,604 200,629 256,590 153,750 104,174 800,747 
2023 86,701 206,455 263,537 157,500 86,194 800,387 
2024-2028 450,474 887,535 70,576 663,750 218,231 2,290,566 
2029-2033 480,112 - - - 56,850 536,962 
2034-2035    200,776                -                -                -        5,166      205,942 

 1,554,029 1,863,171 1,320,605 1,421,250    883,748   7,042,803 
 
Note 10.  Scholarship Allowances 

Scholarship allowances for fiscal years ended June 30 were as follows: 

 
Note 11.  Expenses by Functional Category 

 

Scholarship allowances consist of the following: 
1.  Student tuition, room, board, and book waivers, institutional 
2.  Student tuition waivers, statutory (reserves and war orphan) 
3.  Grant Funds (PELL, SEOG, NSG/NOG) credited to student accounts to 
     offset tuition fees, room and board, and bookstore charges. 

 

 2018 2017 
Tuition and fees 1,819,299 1,750,419 
Room, board, and books    999,418    965,148 

Total 2,818,717 2,715,567 

Expenses for the financial statements are presented by natural classification (personnel services, operating 
expense, travel, and expensed capital assets).  Both NACUBO and GASB have suggested that for historical 
purposes expenses also be presented by functional classifications.  Expenses by functional classification for the 
fiscal year ended June 30 are as follows: 

 2018 2017 
Educational and general:   

Instructional 9,205,909 9,132,787 
Academic support 3,778,730 4,212,923 
Student services 3,347,735 3,134,907 
Institutional support 6,191,009 6,354,707 
Physical plant 3,308,217 1,794,711 
Depreciation 1,790,391 1,690,759 
Student financial aid 1,645,504 1,829,213 

Auxiliary enterprises   1,317,954   1,354,465 
Total expenses 30,585,449 29,504,472 
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Note 13.  Deferred Compensation 
The College provides a deferred compensation plan, which was created in accordance with Internal Revenue 
Code Section 457(b).  This plan permits the employee to defer a portion of their salary until future years.  The 
deferred compensation is not available until termination, retirement, death, or unforeseeable emergency. 
 
Pursuant to Neb. Rev. Stat. Section 48-1401, all compensation deferred under this Plan, all property and rights 
purchased with the deferred compensation, and all investment income attributable to the deferred compensation, 
property, or rights shall be held in trust for the exclusive benefit of Participants and their Beneficiaries by the 
Employer until such time as payments are made under the terms of this Plan. 
 
The trust shall be administered in accordance with the requirements of applicable law, regulations and other 
guidance, including Neb. Rev. Stat. Section 48-1401and Treas Regs. Section 1.457-8. 
 
Note 14.  Related Parties 
The College is the beneficiary of a Foundation, which provides support for the College by way of scholarships 
and other direct resources.   The College contracts to provide the Foundation limited services and office space 
without charge in exchange for the support the College receives.  Scholarships and other direct resources 
provided by the Foundation are remitted to the College.  Such amounts totaled $677,695 and $709,756 for the 
fiscal years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017.  In addition, the Foundation holds investments for the College of 
approximately $377,518 and $290,490 as of June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively.   
 
The College also paid the Facilities Corporation, its blended component unit, rent of $775,464 in 2018, and 
$269,859 in 2017.  
 
Note 15.  Commitments 
As of June 30, 2018 and 2017 the College had commitments of approximately $15,471,601 and $0 
respectively with regard to uncompleted construction contracts as detailed below. 
 
 
 

Note 12.  Retirement Plan 
The College provides retirement benefits for its employees through a defined contribution plan.  In a defined 
contribution plan, benefits depend solely on amounts contributed to the plan, plus investment earnings.  
Generally, all regular full-time employees are eligible to participate in the plan.   Eligible employees are required 
to participate.  The College matches employee contributions from 6.5% to 8.5% of the employee’s gross annual 
salary.  The participants are 100% vested upon contributing to the plan. 

 2018    2017 
   

Total payroll 11,982,806 11,740,965 
   

Covered payroll 10,424,076 10,648,050 

Employer contributions 851,628 864,131 
   

Employer contributions as a percentage of covered payroll 8.17% 8.12% 
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Note 15.  Commitments (Continued) 
In 2017-18, the College began construction of two projects.  The first is the Main Campus Addition and 
Renovation project.  This will create a new Theater, Welcome Center, and Student Learning Commons.  The 
contract amount is $17,330,930.  As of June 30, 2018, the total amount paid was $2,465,805, leaving a balance 
to complete the project of $14,865,125. 
 
The second project is the Powerline Indoor Arena on the Alliance campus.  The contract amount is $689,000.  
As of June 30, 2018, the total paid was $82,524, leaving a balance to complete the project of $606,476. 
 
The College has a commitment to contribute a total of $125,000 annually to faculty supplemental retirement 
accounts per negotiations between the WCCA Board of Governors and the Western Education Association.   
 
Note 16.  Risk Management 
The College is exposed to various risks of loss from torts; theft of; damage to and destruction of assets; business 
interruption; employee injuries and illnesses; natural disasters; and employee health and accident benefits. 
Commercial insurance coverage is purchased for employee group health and accident benefits. Settled claims 
have not exceeded this commercial coverage in any of the three preceding years. 
 
The College has joined with the other five Nebraska community colleges to form the Nebraska Community 
College Insurance Trust, a public entity risk pool currently operating as a common risk management and 
insurance program for its members. The College pays an annual contribution to the Trust for its pooled self-
insurance coverage of property, liability, workers’ compensation, and associated excess coverages. The Trust 
self-insures to various levels for all categories of covered risk and purchases excess coverage for claims in 
excess of the self-insured limits. If the loss fund is exhausted, the Colleges may be assessed for additional costs.  
 
The insurance year ended June 30, 2018, was the Trust’s twenty-third year of operations. In May 2018, the 
Board of Directors of the Trust declared a dividend of $300,000 to be used as an offset to total contributions for 
the 2018 year. The College anticipates no future liabilities for additional incurred losses for all previous years. 
 
Note 17.  Contingency 
The College receives funds from various federal grants principally from the U.S. Department of Education.  
These funds are to be expended in accordance with the provisions of the grants.   
 
Compliance with these grants is subject to audit by the U.S. Department of Education and by independent 
certified public accountants.  Noncompliance could result in sanctions or questioned costs which may result in 
the return of funds to the Department of Education. 
 
Note 18.  Budget Process 
Prior to August 31, the College’s management and Board of Governors prepare a proposed operating budget on 
the cash basis for the general, restricted, and plant funds for the fiscal year commencing July 1.  The budget 
includes proposed expenditures and the means of financing them. 
 
Public hearings are conducted at the September board meeting to obtain taxpayer comments. After the public 
hearings the budget is legally adopted by the Board of Governors through passage of a resolution at the 
September meeting. 
 
Total expenditures may not legally exceed total appropriations and appropriations lapse at year end. 
Note 19.  Segment Disclosure 



WESTERN COMMUNITY COLLEGE AREA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

28 
 

The College issued the 2015 series revenue bonds to remodel and expand a residence hall on the Scottsbluff 
campus for student living.  Summary information for the Scottsbluff residence halls is presented below. 
 
Condensed Statement of Financial Position  
  
 2018     2017 
Assets:   

 Current assets -              25,796 
 Noncurrent assets - - 
 Capital assets    9,462,388   9,748,909 

Total assets   9,462,388   9,774,705 
Liabilities:   

Current liabilities  266,512 260,273 
Noncurrent liabilities   3,150,688   3,417,200 

Total liabilities              3,417,200 3,677,473 
Net position:   

Net investment in capital assets 6,045,188 6,071,436 
Restricted - - 
Unrestricted                 -        25,796 

        6,045,188        6,097,232 
   

 
 
Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 
   
Operating revenues (pledged against bonds)                503,733                649,626 
Depreciation expense (286,521) (286,521) 
Other operating expenses     (330,588)    (350,164) 

Operating income (loss) (113,376)  12,941 
   
Nonoperating revenue (expense)   
    Property Taxes - - 
    Interest expense    (98,497)    (105,620) 
Transfers in 559,828 490,335 
Transfers out    (399,999)    (405,246) 
   
Change in net position (52,044) (7,590) 
   
Beginning net position    6,097,232    6,104,822 
Ending net position     6,045,188    6,097,232 
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Note 19.  Segment Disclosure (Continued) 
Condensed Statement of Cash Flows   

   
Net cash provided by (used in):   

Operating activities 332,975 384,551 
Noncapital financing activities - - 
Capital and related financing activities (358,771) (359,815) 
Investing activities                  -                  - 
Net increase (decrease) (25,796 24,736 

Beginning cash and cash equivalents        25,796          1,060 
Ending cash and cash equivalents                  -        25,796 

 
 
Note 20.  Blended Component Unit Disclosure 
The Western Nebraska Community College Facilities Corporation is presented as a blended component unit of 
the Western Community College Area.  Summary information for the Facilities Corporation is presented below. 
 
Condensed Statement of Financial Position  
 2018 2017 
  

WNCC 
Facilities 

Corporation 
 

WNCC 
Facilities 

Corporation 
Assets:     

Current assets        29,894,851 30,364        30,026,012 31,089 
Capital assets 25,538,375 3,502,272 22,631,944 3,630,842 
Other assets        377,518                 -       290,490                 - 

Total assets  55,810,744  3,532,636  52,948,446  3,661,931 
Liabilities:     

 Current liabilities  4,646,180 238,286 3,215,768 219,470 
Noncurrent liabilities   4,477,688  1,083,773   4,838,450  1,827,970 

 Total liabilities 9,123,868 1,322,059 8,054,218 2,047,440 
     
Net investment in capital assets 20,647,924 2,181,667 17,386,970 1,585,656 
Restricted 7,671,815 28,910 8,714,813 28,835 
Unrestricted  18,367,137                 -  18,792,445                 - 

  46,686,876  2,210,577  44,894,228  1,614,491 
     

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



WESTERN COMMUNITY COLLEGE AREA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

30 
 

Note 20.  Blended Component Unit Disclosure (Continued) 
Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 
     
Operating revenues  4,439,747 -         5,011,580 - 
Depreciation expense (1,661,821) (128,570) (1,562,189) (128,570) 
Other operating expenses  (28,794,333)                  (725) (27,813,713)                  - 

Operating income (loss)  (26,016,407)   (129,295)  (24,364,322)   (128,570) 
     
Nonoperating revenue (expense) 26,194,581 - 26,320,484 - 
Interest expense    (194,043) (50,083)    (157,157) (58,824) 
Transfers in - 775,464 - 269,859 
Transfers out (775,464)               - (269,859)               - 
Other Income    2,583,981                 -    2,672,778                 - 
     
Change in net position  1,792,648 596,086  4,201,924 82,465 

     
Beginning net position  44,894,228  1,614,491  40,692,304  1,532,026 
Ending net position  46,686,876  2,210,577  44,894,228  1,614,491 

     
 
Condensed Statement of Cash Flows 

     
Net cash provided by (used in):     
     Operating activities (24,382,990) 775,464 (22,540,336) 269,859 
     Noncapital financing activities 26,187,406  - 25,665,967  - 
     Capital and related financing activities (2,565,472  (776,189) 669,028  (270,547) 
     Investing activities  (705,655)                -  (3,917,091)                - 

Net increase (decrease) (1,466,711) (725) (122,432) (688) 
Beginning cash and cash equivalents  12,244,966      31,089  12,367,398      31,777 
Ending cash and cash equivalents  10,778,255      30,364  12,244,966      31,089 

 
 
Note 21.  Legal Restriction of Net Position 
Of the $6,951,648 of the net position restricted for capital projects as of June 30, 2018, $1,284,216 was  
restricted by Nebraska statute section 85-1515 for facility fees. 
 
 
Note 22.  Prior Period Adjustment 
There was an adjustment related to prior years of unrealized gains in the Western Nebraska Community College 
Foundation that should have been allocated to the College. 
 
 
Note 23.  Subsequent Events 
Subsequent events have been evaluated through November 13, 2018 which is the date the financial statements 
were available to be issued. 
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WESTERN COMMUNITY COLLEGE AREA 
SCHEDULE OF GENERAL FUND REVENUES 

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 AND 2017 
 
 
                2018                2017 
   
State aid 12,571,341  12,440,842  
Property taxes 9,894,289 10,118,576 
Tuition & Fees 3,845,749 4,044,967 
Other income 568,501 349,254 
(Add to) /use cash reserves       334,224     (1,868,527)     
  27,214,104  25,085,112 
   

 
The revenues in this schedule are presented on the same basis as the College’s General 
Fund budget and are not on a GASB basis of accounting. In particular, tuition is not 
reduced for scholarship allowances from grants and some other funds. 
 
 
PROPERTY VALUATION AND PROPERTY TAX REVENUE 
 
The property valuation for Western Community College Area as reported by County 
Assessor in late August 2017 for use in property tax revenue for June 30, 2018, was 
$12,990,978,312.  The General Fund property tax rate for June 30, 2018, is 7.5436 cents 
per $100 valuation. 
 
The property valuation for Western Community College Area as reported by County 
Assessor in late August 2016 for use in property tax revenue for June 30, 2017, was 
$12,516,070,016.  The General Fund property tax rate for June 30, 2017, is 7.9637 cents 
per $100 valuation. 
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WESTERN COMMUNITY COLLEGE AREA 

SCHEDULE OF GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES 
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 AND 2017 

 
PROGRAM CLASSIFICATION STRUCTURE 

 
 2018 2017 

INSTRUCTION   
     Personnel services 7,266,946 7,012,999 
     Operating expenses 1,606,549 1,502,644 
     Travel 66,589 109,604 
     Equipment       180,247         87,990 
    9,120,331    8,713,237 
   
ACADEMIC SUPPORT   
     Personnel services 2,771,015 2,959,299 
     Operating expenses 762,059 828,522 
     Travel 53,836 77,772 
     Equipment        26,402        38,066 
   3,613,312   3,903,659 
   
STUDENT SUPPORT   
     Personnel services 2,142,549 1,762,473 
     Operating expenses 702,369 593,387 
     Travel 214,012 194,107 
     Equipment        10,290          3,629 
   3,069,220   2,553,596 
   
INSTITUTIONAL ADMINISTRATION   
     Personnel services 3,087,762 3,275,764 
     Operating expenses 2,979,961 2,857,031 
     Travel 141,136 148,023 
     Equipment      137,254        40,452 
   6,346,113   6,321,270 
   
PHYSICAL PLANT OPERATIONS   
     Personnel services 546,738 433,128 
     Operating expenses 3,621,621 2,283,441 
     Travel 711 1,142 
     Equipment        13,181        11,159 
   4,182,251   2,728,870 
   
STUDENT FINANCIAL SUPPORT   
     Operating expenses      882,877      864,478 
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WESTERN COMMUNITY COLLEGE AREA 

SCHEDULE OF GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES 
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 AND 2017 

 
PROGRAM CLASSIFICATION STRUCTURE 

 
                2018                2017 
   
GRAND TOTAL FOR COLLEGE   
     Personnel services 15,815,010 15,443,664 
     Operating expenses 10,555,436 8,929,504 
     Travel 476,284 530,648 
     Equipment      367,374      181,296 
 27,214,104 25,085,112 
   

The expenditures in this schedule are presented on the same basis as the College’s 
General Fund budget and are not on a GASB basis of accounting. In particular, 
equipment is shown as an expense. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



WESTERN COMMUNITY COLLEGE AREA
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Federal
Federal Grantor/Pass-through Grantor  CFDA Contract Federal

Program Title Number Number Expenditures

U.S. Department of Education:

Direct Programs:
Student Financial Aid Cluster:

Federal Pell Grant Program 2016-17 84.063 P063P161785 2,732             
Federal Pell Grant Program 2017-18 84.063 P063P171785 2,163,601      
Federal Supplemental Educational Opportunity Grants 2017-18 84.007 P007A172463 27,225           
Federal Work Study Program 2017-18 84.033 P033A172463 46,445           
Federal Direct Student Loans 2016-17 84.268 P268K171785 21,143           
Federal Direct Student Loans 2017-18 84.268 P268K181785 1,282,464      

Total Student Financial Aid Cluster 3,543,610      

Passed through Nebraska Department of Education:
Adult Education - Basic Grants to States

Adult Basic Education 84.002 17-2AEF-19-00-941000 146,192         
Institutionalized 84.002 17-2AEF-19-00-941000 9,933             
Volunteer Coordination 84.002 17-2AES-19-00-941000 10,698           
Adult Education Professional Development 84.002 17-2AEP-19-00-941000 9,791             

Total Adult Education Program 176,614         

Direct Programs:
TRIO - Upward Bound

Upward Bound 2016-17 84.047A P047A121585 61,140           
Veterans Upward Bound 2016-17 84.047A P047V120120 13,618           
Veterans Upward Bound 2017-18 84.047A P047V170028 212,101         

TRIO - Student Support Services
Title IV, Student Support Services 2016-17 84.042A P042A150153 41,826           
Title IV, Student Support Services 2017-18 84.042A P042A150153 324,439         
Student Support Services Supplementary 84.042A P042A150153 5,000             

658,124         

Passed through Nebraska Department of Education:
Career and Technical Education - Basic Grants to States 84.048 V048A160027 86,496           

86,496           

Total U.S. Department of Education: 4,464,844      

National Aeronautics and Space Administration:

Passed through Board of Regents University of Nebraska:
Education 43.008 NNX15AI09H 7,489             

7,489             

TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 4,472,333      

See accompanying notes to schedule of federal awards.
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WESTERN COMMUNITY COLLEGE AREA 
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 
 
 

NOTE 1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION 
 

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards includes federal award 
activity of Western Community College Area.  The information in this schedule is 
presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal 
Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and 
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance).  Because the schedule 
presents only a selected portion of the operations of the College, it’s not intended to and 
does not present the financial position, changes in net assets, or cash flows of the College. 
 

NOTE 2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 

The schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented on the accrual basis of 
accounting. 

 
NOTE 3. INDIRECT COST RATE 
 
  The College uses an indirect cost rate cost rate of 8% for its TRIO programs. 
 
NOTE 4. SUBRECIPIENTS 
 

Western Community College Area provided no federal awards to subrecipients. 
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DANA F. COLE 
& COMPANYLLP 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

To the Board of Governors 
Western Community College Area 
Scottsbluff, Nebraska 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities and the dis­
cretely presented component unit of Western Community College Area (College) as of and for the year 
ended June 30, 2017 and 2016, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively 
comprise the College's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements 
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this 
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation 
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due 
to fraud or error. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We con­
ducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards 

issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and per­
form the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of ma­
terial misstatement. The financial statements of Western Nebraska Community College Foundation, a 
discretely presented component unit of the College, were not audited in accordance with Government 

Auditing Standards. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclo­
sures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, in­
cluding the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control rele­
vant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. 
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting principles used and reason­
ableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion. 
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Opinions 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the financial position of the business-type activities and the discretely presented component unit 
of Western Community College Area as of June 30, 2017 and 2016, and the respective changes in 
financial position and cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the manage­
ment's discussion and analysis on pages 4 through 10 be presented to supplement the basic finan­
cial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required 
by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of finan­
cial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or 
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary infor­
mation in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, 
which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and 
comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic 
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial state­
ments. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the lim­
ited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any 
assurance. 

Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise Western Community College Area•s

'
basic financial statements. The schedule 

of general fund revenues, schedule of general fund expenditures, and schedule of expenditures of 
federal awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Ad­

ministrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, are pre­
sented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the financial statements. 

The schedule of general fund revenues, schedule of general fund expenditures, and schedule of ex­
penditures of federal awards are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. 
Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial 
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or 
to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly 
presented in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. 
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated Novem­
ber 2, 2017, on our consideration of Western Community College Area's internal control over financial 
reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and 
grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our test­
ing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not 
to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is 
an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in consid­
ering Western Nebraska College Area's internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

Scottsbluff, Nebraska 
November 2, 2017 
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This section of Western Community College Area’s annual financial report presents management’s discussion 
and analysis of the College’s financial performance during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017.  Please read 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis in conjunction with the College’s financial statements, which follow 
this section. 
 
Using this annual report 
This discussion and analysis is intended as an introduction to the College’s basic financial statements and notes to 
the financial statements.   The financial statements include three components: The Statement of Net Position; the 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position; and the Statement of Cash Flows provide 
information on the College as a whole and present a long-term view of the College’s finances. 
 
The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 
One of the most important questions asked about the College’s finances is, “Is Western Community College Area, 
as a whole, better off as a result of the year’s activities?” The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of 
Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position report information on the College as a whole and on its activities 
in a way that helps answer this question. When revenues and other support exceed expenses, the result is an increase 
in net position. When the reverse occurs, the result is a decrease in net position. The relationship between revenues 
and expenses may be thought of as the College’s operating results. 
 
These statements include all assets and liabilities using the accrual basis of accounting, which is similar to the 
accounting used by most private-sector companies. All of the current year’s revenues and expenses are taken into 
account regardless of when cash is received or paid. 
 
These two statements report the College’s net position and changes in it.  You can think of the College’s net 
position (the difference between assets and liabilities) as one way to measure the College’s financial health, or 
financial position. Over time, increases or decreases in the College’s net position are one indicator of whether 
financial health is improving or deteriorating. You will need to consider other nonfinancial factors, however, such 
as enrollment trends, placement results, program quality, condition of buildings, campus safety and other factors 
to assess the overall health of the institution. 

 
Figure 1 

Western Community College Area 
Net Position 

(in thousands of dollars) 
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Table 1 
Western Community College Area 

Net Position 
(in thousands of dollars) 

    
 2017 2016 2015 
    
Current assets 30,057 25,937 22,923 
Noncurrent assets 174 172 184 
Capital assets 26,263 26,632 27,139 

Total assets 56,494 52,741 50,246 
         Deferred Outflows           -           -           - 
Current liabilities 3,435 3,343 3,756 
Noncurrent liabilities   6,666   7,290   8,148 

Total liabilities 10,101 10,633 11,904 
         Deferred Inflows           -           -           - 
Net position    

Invested in capital assets    
net of related debt 18,973 18,734 18,640 

Restricted 8,628 6,248 3,968 
Unrestricted 18,792 17,126 15,734 

  Total net position 46,393 42,108 38,342 
 
Net position of the College increased by 10.2% ($4,285 thousands) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017. 
The increase in net position is due to the following factors: 
 

Net position increased due to expenditures being less than planned, and an increase in funds restricted 
for capital projects. 

 
Table 2 

Western Community College Area 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and 

Changes in Net Position 
(in thousands of dollars) 

    
 2017 2016 2015 
Operating revenue    

Student tuition and fees 2,494 2,284 2,437 
Grants and contracts 39 61 40 
Sales and charges of educational departments 12 26 27 
Auxiliary enterprises 2,404 2,125 2,138 
Other           62         103         183 

        Total operating revenue      5,011      4,599      4,825 
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Table 2 

Western Community College Area 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and 

Changes in Net Position (continued) 
(in thousands of dollars) 

    
 2017 2016 2015 

Operating expense    
Personal services 17,420 16,858 16,525 
Operating expenses 9,553 9,675 9,445 
Travel 648 540 653 
Capital assets not capitalized 192 266 293 
Depreciation     1,691     1,653     1,469 
    Total operating expenses   29,504   28,992   28,385 

Net operating loss (24,493) (24,393) (23,560) 
    

Non-operating revenue    
    State aid 12,441 12,591 12,233 
    Property taxes 10,119 9,380 9,237 

Grants and contracts 3,606 3,884 4,104 
Other receipts - - - 
Investment income 155 91 72 
Interest on capital debt      (216)     (219)     (218) 
    Net nonoperating revenues   26,105   25,727   25,428 
    
Capital appropriations 2,664 2,430 1,902 

    Gain on sale of capital assets           9                                                     2                                                     7                                           
        Net other income    2,673    2,432    1,909 

    
    Increase in net position 4,285 3,766 3,777 
    

Net position    
    Net position beginning of year   42,108   38,342   34,565 
    Net position end of year   46,393   42,108   38,342 
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Figure 2 

Western Community College Area 
Revenues 

(in thousands of dollars) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

   
 

  
  
   

      
 

The change in revenues was the result of the following: 
 

Operating revenue increased by 9.0% ($412 thousands), primarily due to increases in tuition and 
fees revenues, and auxiliary enterprises. 
 
Nonoperating revenue increased by 1.5% ($375 thousands).  State aid decreased by 1.2%, while 
property taxes increased by 7.9%.   Government grants decreased by 7.2%. 

 
Other income increased by 9.9% ($241 thousands), primarily due to an increase in capital 
appropriations. 
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Figure 3 

Western Community College Area 
Expenses 

(in thousands of dollars) 

 
The change in expenses was the result of the following: 
 

Total expenses increased 1.7% ($509 thousands) for fiscal year ended June 30, 2017.  Personal 
services increased 3.3% ($562 thousands).  Operating expenses decreased 1.3% ($122 thousands).  
Depreciation increased by 2.3% ($38 thousands).  

 
The Statement of Cash Flows 
Another way to assess the financial health of the College is to look at the Statement of Cash Flows. The 
purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows is to provide relevant information about cash receipts and cash 
payments made by the College during a fiscal year. The Statement also helps users to assess the College’s: 

Ability to generate future net cash flows 
Ability to meet its obligations as they come due 
Needs for external financing 

Table 3 
Western Community College Area 

Cash Flows 
(in thousands of dollars) 

    
 2017 2016 2015 
Cash provided (used) by:    

Operating activities (22,270) (23,439) (23,018) 
Non-capital financing activities 25,666 25,552 25,217 
Capital and related financing activities 398 323 (1,912) 
Investing activities  (3,917)  (2,172)     (944) 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (123)  264  (657)  
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year  12,399   12,135   12,792  
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year  12,276   12,399   12,135  
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The change in cash flow was the result of the following: 
 
Cash used by operating activities decreased $1,169 thousands (5.0%) primarily due to an increase in 
operating expenses. 
 
Cash provided by noncapital financing activities increased $114 thousands (0.1%) due to increases in 
property tax receipts.  This was offset by a decreases in state aid, and gifts and grants for other than 
capital purposes. 
 
Cash provided by capital and related financing activities increased $75 thousands (23.2%) primarily 
due to an increase in capital appropriations.  
 
Cash used by investing activities increased $1,745 thousands (80.3%) due primarily to the net 
purchase of CDs. 
 
Cash and cash equivalents decreased for the 2016-17 year by $123 thousands (0.1%) primarily because 
of a shift of cash and cash equivalents to investments. 

 
 
Capital asset and debt administration 
  
Capital Assets 

Table 4 
Western Community College Area 

Capital Assets 
(Net of depreciation, in thousands of dollars) 

    
 2017 2016 2015 
    
Land and improvements 2,070 1,998 2,085 
Buildings 21,698 22,400 17,888 
Equipment 2,437  2,201  2,084  
Construction in progress        58        33   5,082 
 26,263  26,632  27,139  

 
Major capital additions funded this year and the source of resources that funded the acquisition include (in 
thousands of dollars): 
 

Vehicle Shelter on the Scottsbluff Campus from capital improvement funds  195 
Equipment purchases from general operating funds 478 
Equipment purchases from grant funds 102 
Equipment purchases from auxiliary funds 368 
Construction in progress from capital improvement funds 219 

        Paving assessment from capital improvement funds 155 
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The College has planned capital expenditures for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2018 of approximately 
$9,577 thousands. 
 

Equipment financed by the General Fund, student fees and capital grants will total $863 thousands. 
 
Other capital construction projects of $8,714 thousands will be financed from the Capital 
Improvement Fund, ADA/Hazardous Materials Fund, and bond proceeds. 

 
 
More detailed information about the College’s capital assets is presented in Note 6 of the financial 
statements. 
 
Debt 
At June 30, 2017 and 2016, the College had $7,290 and $7,898 thousands debt outstanding.  
 

Table 5 
Western Community College Area 

Outstanding Debt 
(in thousands of dollars) 

    
 2017 2016 2015 
    
2012 Student facility bond 2,042 2,216 2,385 
2012 WNCC Facilities Corporation bond 2,045 2,256 2,463 
2013 Limited tax facility refunding bonds 1,568 1,710 1,856 
2015 Student facility revenue bond   1,635   1,716   1,795 
   7,290   7,898   8,499 

 
Economic factors that will affect the future 
The economic position of Western Community College Area is closely tied to that of the State.  For 2017-
2018, the Nebraska Legislature decreased State Aid to Western Nebraska Community College in the 
amount of $47,234.   

 
The College Board of Governors adopted a total college property tax levy of 9.6815 cents for 2017-2018.  
Valuations for the 13-county service area increased 3.79% which also decreased the total college property 
tax request by $5,555 at that levy. 

 
Resident and border states tuition rates were increased $2.50 per credit hour while non-resident tuition 
rates remained unchanged. 
 
Financial contact 
The College’s financial statements are designed to present users with a general overview of the  
College’s finances and demonstrate the College’s accountability.  If you have questions about the  
report or need additional information, contact the College’s Vice President of Administrative Services, 
William D. Knapper, at 1601 East 27th Street, Scottsbluff, Nebraska 69361, or call (308) 635-3606. 



Western Community College Area

June 30, 2017 and 2016

2017 2016
College Foundation College Foundation

Assets
Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 12,248,914         588,977              12,386,162         379,598              
Restricted cash 27,141                -                          13,013                -                          
Short-term investments 11,172,189         4,943,223 7,126,975           4,011,012
Property taxes receivable 4,820,867           -                          4,272,700           -                          
Accounts receivable (net) 1,136,032           1,706,585           1,173,783           2,110,070           
Interest receivable 50,385                1,530                  25,765                1,529                  
Inventories 238,562              -                          177,524              -                          
Prepaid expense 363,011              -                          761,141              -                          

Total current assets 30,057,101         7,240,315           25,937,063         6,502,209           

Non-current Assets
Deposit with Foundation 174,476              -                          172,551              -                          
Capital assets - net 26,262,786         183,946              26,631,892         191,946              

Total non-current assets 26,437,262         183,946              26,804,443         191,946              

Total assets 56,494,363         7,424,261           52,741,506         6,694,155           

Liabilities
Current liabilities

Accounts payable 802,694              110,511              634,927              6,036                  
Accrued salaries 1,789,880           -                          1,862,210           -                          
Accrued interest 15,089                -                          16,291                -                          
Deposits 31,115                -                          37,121                -                          
Bonds payable - current 623,740              -                          608,186              -                          
Annuity payable - current -                          12,059                -                          11,266                
Deposits held in custody for others 172,720              174,476              184,295              172,551              

Total current liabilities 3,435,238           297,046              3,343,030           189,853              

Non-current liabilities
Bonds payable 6,666,420           -                          7,290,160           -                          
Annuity payable -                          221,029              -                          233,086              

Total non-current liabilities 6,666,420           221,029              7,290,160           233,086              

Total liabilities 10,101,658         518,075              10,633,190         422,939              

Net Position
Net investment in capital assets 18,972,626         183,946              18,733,546         191,946              
Restricted for:

Expendable
Loans 133,269              -                          132,044              -                          
Capital projects 8,084,354           -                          5,804,679           -                          
Other 243,430              3,625,208           145,148              3,047,517           

Nonexpendable 166,581              1,673,680           166,581              1,610,712           
Unrestricted 18,792,445         1,423,352           17,126,318         1,421,041           

Total net position 46,392,705         6,906,186           42,108,316         6,271,216           

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

Statements of Net Position
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Western Community College Area
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

For the Years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016

2017 2016
College Foundation College Foundation

REVENUES
Operating revenues

Tuition and fees 2,494,636           -                          2,284,221           -                          
Nongovernmental grants and contracts 39,294                -                          61,104                -                          
Sales and services of educational departments 12,335                -                          25,345                -                          
Auxiliary enterprises 2,403,508           -                          2,124,849           -                          
Other operating income 61,807                28,800                103,243              28,800                

Total operating revenues 5,011,580           28,800                4,598,762           28,800                

EXPENSES
Operating expenses

Personal services 17,420,369         -                          16,857,904         -                          
Operating expenses 9,552,801           838,216              9,674,748           829,385              
Travel 648,601              -                          540,027              -                          
Noncapitalized capital assets 191,942              -                          265,843              -                          
Depreciation 1,690,759           8,000                  1,653,290           8,000                  

Total operating expenses 29,504,472         846,216              28,991,812         837,385              
Operating income (loss) (24,492,892)        (817,416)             (24,393,050)        (808,585)             

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Governmental appropriations

State aid 12,440,842         -                          12,590,911         -                          
Property taxes 10,118,576         -                          9,380,359           -                          

Governmental grants and contracts
Federal 3,295,847           -                          3,320,649           -                          
State 310,549              -                          563,792              -                          

Gifts -                          947,633              -                          3,260,702           
Investment income 154,670              504,753              91,104                97,531                
Interest on capital assets - related debt (215,981)             -                          (219,522)             -                          

Net nonoperating revenues (expenses) 26,104,503         1,452,386           25,727,293         3,358,233           
Income before other revenues, (expenses), gains,
or (losses) 1,611,611           634,970              1,334,243           2,549,648           

OTHER INCOME
Capital appropriations 2,663,407           -                          2,430,186           -                          
Gain on sale of capital assets 9,371                  -                          1,401                  -                          

Total other income 2,672,778           -                          2,431,587           -                          

Increase in net position 4,284,389           634,970              3,765,830           2,549,648           

NET POSITION
Net position - beginning of year  42,108,316         6,271,216           38,342,486         3,721,568           
Net position - end of year 46,392,705         6,906,186           42,108,316         6,271,216           

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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2017 2016
Cash flows from operating activities

Tuition and fees 2,324,393               2,232,094               
Payments for personal services (17,492,699)           (16,953,594)           
Payments for operating expenses (8,606,703)             (9,592,536)             
Payments for non-capitalized assets (191,942)                (265,843)                
Payments for financial aid awards (925,967)                (987,512)                
Collection of loans to students and employees 15,183                    31,976                    
Loans issued to students and employees (19,663)                  (29,303)                  
Sales and services of education departments 12,335                    25,345                    
Auxiliary enterprise receipts 2,403,508               2,124,849               
Other receipts (payments) 211,078                  (24,815)                  

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities (22,270,477)           (23,439,339)           

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities
State aid appropriation 12,440,842             12,590,911             
Property taxes 9,697,684               9,126,803               
Federal grants and awards 2,956,408               2,956,020               
Gifts and grants for other than capital purposes 571,034                  878,732                  

Net cash provided (used) by noncapital financing activities 25,665,968             25,552,466             

Cash flows from capital financing activities
Property taxes - capital improvement fund 2,536,132               2,288,940               
Purchase of capital assets (1,102,247)             (339,551)                
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (219,406)                (806,756)                
Proceeds for capital debt issue -                             -                             
Principal paid on capital debt (608,186)                (600,438)                
Net proceeds from the sale of capital asset 9,371                      1,401                      
Interest paid on capital debt (217,183)                (220,685)                

Net cash provided (used) by capital financing activities 398,481                  322,911                  

Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments 18,439,034             10,722,016             
Interest on investments 130,050                  89,849                    
Purchase of investments (22,486,176)           (12,983,877)           

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities (3,917,092)             (2,172,012)             

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (123,120)                264,026                  

Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of year 12,399,175             12,135,149             

Cash and cash equivalents - end of year 12,276,055             12,399,175             

(Continued)
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2017 2016
Reconciliation of net operating revenues (expenses) to
net cash provided (used) in operating activities

Operating income (loss) (24,492,892)           (24,393,050)           
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash

provided (used) in operating activities:
Depreciation 1,690,760               1,653,290               
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Accounts receivable 121,186                  (73,453)                  
Student and staff notes receivable (4,480)                    2,674                      
Inventories (61,038)                  65,389                    
Prepaid expenses 398,130                  (25,219)                  
Accounts payable 167,767                  (595,381)                
Accrued salaries (72,330)                  (95,690)                  
Other Liabilities -                             -                             
Deposits held for others (17,580)                  22,101                    

Net cash used in operating activities (22,270,477)           (23,439,339)           

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

  

For the Years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016
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Note 1.  Organization and summary of significant accounting policies 
Western Community College Area was established July 1, 1973 by legislative action. The Area encompasses the 
13 counties of the Nebraska panhandle. An eleven member Board of Governors is the College’s ruling body and 
establishes the policies and procedures by which the College is governed.   

 
Reporting Entity 

 The concept underlying the definition of the financial reporting entity is that elected officials are 
accountable to their constituents for their actions. As required by accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States of America, the financial reporting entity includes both the primary government and all of 
its component units as defined by Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 14 
The Financial Reporting Entity. An organization other than a primary government serves as a nucleus for a 
reporting entity when it issues separate financial statements.  Western Community College Area is not a 
component unit of another primary governmental reporting entity.  

        
 The Western Nebraska Community College Facilities Corporation (WNCCFC) is a legally separate, 

nonprofit corporation which is a component unit of Western Nebraska Community College. WNCCFC was 
formed by the College in 2003 to acquire property to be leased to and purchased by the College. The Board 
of Governors of the College appoints the members of the Board of WNCCFC. The WNCCFC provides 
services entirely to the college. The services provided by WNCCFC are so intertwined with the College that 
the WNCCFC is in substance the same as the College and it is reported as part of the College and blended 
into the College’s financial statements. 

  
College Foundation 

       Under GASB 39, Determining Whether Certain Organizations are Component Units - an amendment of 
GASB 14, legally separate organizations meeting certain criteria should be discretely presented as 
component units.  The criteria are: 
1. The economic resources received or held by the separate organization are entirely or almost entirely for 

the direct benefit of the college or its constituents (e.g., students, faculty and staff). 
2. The college is entitled to, or has the ability to otherwise access, a majority of the economic resources 

received or held by the separate organization. 
3. The economic resources received or held by an individual organization that the college is entitled to, or 

has the ability to otherwise access, are significant to the college. 
 

 The Western Nebraska Community College Foundation (Foundation) is a legally separate, tax exempt 
component unit of Western Community College Area. The Foundation acts primarily as a fund-raising 
organization to provide support to the College.  The Foundation is governed by a volunteer Board.  
Although the college does not control the timing or amounts of receipts from the Foundation, the majority of 
resources, or income thereon, which the Foundation holds and invests, is restricted to the activities of the 
College by the donors.  Because restricted resources held by the Foundation can only be used by, or for the 
benefit of the College, the Foundation is considered a component unit of the College and is discretely 
presented in the College’s financial statements.   

       
       These financial statements do not contain disclosures of information of the Foundation.  Complete financial 

statements for the Foundation can be obtained from the Foundation offices located in the John N. Harms 
Center at 2620 College Park, Scottsbluff, NE 69361.    
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Note 1.  Organization and summary of significant accounting policies (Continued) 
Basis of Accounting 

 The College’s financial statements have been prepared using the economic resources measurement focus 
and the accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues, expenses, assets, deferred outflows of 
resources, liabilities and deferred inflows of resources resulting from exchange and exchange-like 
transactions should be recognized when the exchange takes place. 

 
       In accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 20, Accounting and 

Financial Reporting for Proprietary Funds and Other Governmental Entities That Use Proprietary Fund 
Accounting, which has been superseded by GASB Statement No. 62, Codification of Accounting and 
Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements, 
the College has elected to follow all applicable GASB pronouncements,  including all National Council of 
Governmental Accounting (NCGA) statements and interpretations currently in effect, as well as all 
Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) statements and interpretations issued after November 30, 
1989, except those that conflict or contradict GASB pronouncements. 

 
       In addition to the GASB Statements previously discussed the significant accounting policies followed by 

the college are described below: 
 
 GASB Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements – and Management’s Discussion and Analysis- for 

State and Local Governments, establishes financial reporting requirements that require the basic financial 
statements and required supplementary information for general purpose governments should consist of: 
management’s discussion and analysis, basic financial statements, and required supplementary information. 

 
 GASB Statement No. 35 – Basic financial Statements – and Management’s Discussion and Analysis – for 

Public Colleges and Universities – an amendment of GASB Statement No. 34, establishes accounting and 
financial reporting standards for public colleges and universities within the financial reporting guidelines of 
GASB 34.  In accordance with this statement, the college presents statements of net position, revenues, 
expenses, and changes in net position, and cash flows on college-wide basis.  The objective of this statement 
is to enhance the understandability of usefulness of the external financial reports issued. 

 
 GASB Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of 

Resources, and Net Position, establishes a new statement of net position format that reports separately all 
assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, and net position (which is 
the net residual amount of the other elements).  The Statement requires deferred outflows of resources and 
deferred inflows of resources to be reported separately from assets and liabilities.   

 
       GASB Statement No 65, Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities, amends or supersedes the 

accounting and financial reporting guidance for certain items previously required to be reported as assets or 
liabilities.  The objective is to either properly clarify certain items that were previously reported as assets 
and liabilities as deferred outflows of resources or deferred inflows of resources or recognize certain items 
that were previously reported as assets and liabilities as outflows of resources (expenses) or inflows of 
resources (revenues).   

 
The Foundation is a private nonprofit organization that reports under FASB standards, including FASB 
Statement No. 958-205, Financial Reporting for Not-for-Profit Organizations.  As such, certain revenue 
recognition criteria and presentation features are different from GASB revenue recognition criteria and  
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Note 1.  Organization and summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)    
presentation features. No modifications have been made to the Foundation’s financial information in the 
College’s financial reporting entity for these differences. 
 

      Basis of Presentation 
      The accompanying financial statements are presented in accordance with accounting principles generally 

accepted in the United States of American as prescribed by Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
(GASB). 

  
       Pursuant to the provisions of GASB Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements – Management’s 

Discussion and Analysis – State and Local Governments, as amended by GASB Statement No. 35, Basic 
Financial Statements – and Management’s Discussion and Analysis – for Public Colleges and Universities, 
the full scope of the College’s activities is considered to be a single business-type activity (BTA) and 
accordingly, is reported within a single column in the basic financial statements. 

 
Donated Assets and Services 

       Donated materials or equipment, when received, are reflected as contributions in the accompanying 
statements at their estimated fair market values at the date of receipt. 

 
 Budgets 
       Budgets are prepared on the same basis of accounting except that capital assets acquired are recorded as 

expenses and depreciation is not recorded. 
 

 Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 The College follows GASB No. 31 (as amended by GASB No. 40), Accounting and Financial Reporting for 

Certain Investments and for External Investment Pools.  GASB 31 requires the College's investments to be 
recorded at market value with the changes in the market value of investments reported as investment income 
in the statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in fund equity.  Investments are recorded at the market 
value as determined by quoted market prices. 

 
       Cash deposits, primarily interest bearing, are covered by federal depository insurance or pledged collateral 

of unregistered U.S. Government securities held by various depositories.  Investments at June 30, 2017 and 
2016 were in unregistered U.S. Government securities and Federal Agency obligations held in the College's 
name by the custodial banks. 

 
       For the purposes of the statements of cash flows, the College considers all highly liquid debt instruments 

purchased with a maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. 
  

Investments 
Investments are reported at fair value. 

 
 Receivables 
       Receivables consist of tuition and fees charges to students and charges for auxiliary enterprises’ sales and 

services. Receivables also include amounts due from the federal government, state and local governments, 
and private sources in connection with reimbursement of allowable expenditures made pursuant to contracts 
and grants, and pledges that are verifiable, measurable, and expected to be collected and available for 
expenditures for which the resource provider’s conditions have been satisfied. Receivables are recorded net 
of estimated uncollectible amounts. 
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Note 1.  Organization and summary of significant accounting policies (Continued) 
Inventories 

 Inventories are valued at the lower-of-cost or market value as determined by the first-in, first-out (FIFO) 
method. 

 
Bond Issuance Costs 

 Bond issuance costs are expenditures related to the issuance of bonds.  With the implementation of GASB 
65, these costs are now expensed when incurred. 

 
 Capital Assets 
 Capital assets are stated at cost at date of acquisition, or fair value at date of donation in the case of gifts. 

The College capitalizes assets that have a value or cost in excess of $5,000 at the date of acquisition and an 
expected useful life of one or more years. Library books are expensed. 

 
Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the useful lives of the assets. The following 
estimated useful lives are used to compute depreciation: 

  Buildings      40 years 
  Building improvements   20 years 
  Building content replacements  10 years 
  Office furniture     10 years 
  Instructional equipment     7 years 

Other equipment      5 years 
  Office equipment        3 years 
  Vehicles         3 years 

 
       Land, artwork and other collectible assets are not depreciated. 

        
       Restricted Assets 

Restricted assets represent assets whose use is restricted by external parties or by law through constitutional 
provisions or enabling legislation. 
 
Restricted/Unrestricted Resource Policy 
If both restricted and unrestricted resources are available to finance a program, restricted resources are used 
first unless the restricted resources require unrestricted resources to be used first. 
 
Unearned Revenue 
Unearned revenue is revenue received but not earned as of the end of the fiscal year. 
  
Operating Versus Nonoperating  
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services in connection with the College's 
ongoing operations.  The principal operating revenues are charges to customers for services.  Operating 
expenses include the cost of service, administrative expenses and depreciation on capital assets.  All 
revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses. 

 
Compensated Absences 
Vacation and personal leave meet the criteria in GASB Statement No. 16 and are included in accrued 
compensated absences. The criteria for accruing compensated absences are met when employee’s rights to 
receive compensation are attributable to services already rendered and it is probable that the employer will  



WESTERN COMMUNITY COLLEGE AREA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

19 
 

Note 1.  Organization and summary of significant accounting policies (Continued) 
compensate the employee through paid time off or some other means, such as cash at termination or 
retirement. 
 

       Noncurrent Liabilities 
       Noncurrent liabilities include accrued salaries for early retirement, deferred revenue, deposits held in 

custody for others, and notes and bonds payable. 
 

Net Position 
       The net position of the College is broken down into three categories:  (1) net invested in capital assets, (2) 

restricted component of net position and (3) unrestricted component of net position. 
 

       Net invested in capital assets - Consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the 
outstanding balances of bonds, mortgages, notes, or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, 
construction, or improvement of those assets. Deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets or related debt 
are included in this component of net position.  
 

       Restricted - Consists of restricted assets reduced by liabilities and deferred inflows of resources related to 
those assets. Generally, a liability relates to restricted assets if the asset results from a resource flow that also 
results in the recognition of a liability or if the liability will be liquidated with the restricted assets reported. 

 
       Unrestricted - Consists of assets that do not meet the definition of restricted net position or net position 

invested in capital assets, net of related debt. 
 
       It is the College's policy to first use restricted components of net position prior to the use of unrestricted 

components of net position when an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and 
unrestricted components of net position are available. 

 
       Restricted Net Position 
 Restricted net position is further broken down into expendable and nonexpendable portions. 
 

Restricted net position – expendable includes resources in which the College is legally or contractually 
obligated to spend in accordance with restrictions imposed by third parties. 
 
Restricted net position – nonexpendable consists of endowment funds in which the donors have stipulated, 
as a condition of the gift instrument, that the principal is to be maintained inviolate and in perpetuity and 
invested for the purpose of producing present and future income. 

 
Scholarship Allowances 
Student tuition and fees revenues and certain other revenues from College charges are reported net of 
scholarship allowances in the accompanying statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position. 
The scholarship allowance is the difference between the actual charge for goods and services provided by 
the College and the amount that is paid by students or by third parties on the students’ behalf. Student 
financial assistance grants, such as Pell grants and other federal, state or nongovernmental programs, are 
recorded as either operating or nonoperating revenues in the accompanying statements of revenues, 
expenses, and changes in net position. To the extent that revenues from these programs are used to satisfy 
tuition, fees, and other charges, the College has recorded them as scholarship allowances.  



WESTERN COMMUNITY COLLEGE AREA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

20 
 

Note 1.  Organization and summary of significant accounting policies (Continued) 
Revenue and Expense Recognition 
The College presents its revenues and expenses as operating or nonoperating based on recognition 
definitions from GASB Statement No. 9 Reporting Cash Flows of Proprietary and Nonexpendable Trust 
Funds and Governmental Entities That Use Proprietary Fund Accounting. Operating activities are those 
activities that are necessary and essential to the mission of the College.  Operating revenues include all 
charges to customers, grants received for student financial assistance, and interest earned on loans. Grants 
received for student financial assistance are considered operating revenues because they provide resources 
for student charges and such programs are necessary and essential to the mission of the College.  Revenues 
from nonexchange transactions and state appropriations that represent subsidies or gifts to the College, as 
well as investment income, are considered nonoperating since these are investing, capital or noncapital 
financing activities.  Operating expenses are all expense transactions incurred other than those related to 
investing, capital or noncapital financing activities. Revenues received for capital financing activities, as 
well as related expenses are considered neither operating nor nonoperating activities and are presented after 
nonoperating activities on the accompanying statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net assets. 
   
Use of Estimates 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and 
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts 
of revenues and expenses during the reported period.  Actual results could differ from those estimates. 
 

Note 2.  Cash and Investments 
The College can invest, after proper consideration of the requirements for the availability of money, funds of the 
College in securities the nature of which individuals of prudence, discretion, and intelligence acquire or retain in 
dealing with the property of another. 

  
Interest Rate Risk 
The College does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment maturities as a means of 
managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates. 
 
Credit Risk 
In accordance with the College’s investment policy, funds may be invested, within certain limits, in FDIC 
insured banks, U.S. Treasury and federal agencies, and certificates of deposit issued by FDIC insured banks.  
 
Custodial Credit Risk – Deposits 
Custodial credit risk for deposits of the College is the risk that the College’s deposits would not be covered 
by depository insurance. Deposits were reflected in the accounts of the banks at $24,207,615 and 
$19,988,163 as of June 30, 2017 and 2016.  All of the balances for June 30, 2017 and 2016 were insured or 
fully collateralized 
 
Custodial Credit Risk – Investments 
For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of a failure of the counter party, the 
College will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the 
possession of an outside party. The College has no custodial credit risk in its investment portfolio. 
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 Note 2.  Cash and Investments (Continued) 
 

Investments at June 30, 2017 and 2016 are summarized as follows: 
 

 
Investment Type 

    2017 
Fair Value 

    2016 
Fair Value 

   
Certificates of deposit 10,632,506 6,844,780 
Money market accounts                         539,683    282,195 

 11,172,189  7,126,975 
 

Note 3.  Property Tax Receivable 
Property taxes levied for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2017 were due December 31, 2016 and became 
delinquent in May and September of 2017.  Property tax revenues, based on the assessed valuation and the levy 
set, are recognized in the current fiscal year even though part of the property tax revenue is not delinquent or 
collected until the following fiscal year. Property taxes are recognized net of the county collection fee of 1%.  
The assessed valuation and levies in cents per $100 of assessed valuation for the fiscal years ended June 30 were 
as follows: 
 

 2017 2016 
Assessed valuation August 2017 and 2016 12,516,070,016 11,737,011,968 
Levy in cents per $100 of assessed valuation 
      General fund 7.9637 7.9717 
       Capital improvement fund 2.0896 2.0816 
       ADA/Hazardous waste fund   0.0000   0.0000 

Total 10.0533 10.0533 
 

The amount of property tax receivable at June 30 was as follows: 
 2017 2016 

        General Fund 3,818,092 3,397,200 
        Capital improvement fund 1,002,775 875,500 
        ADA/Hazardous waste fund                               -                                           -              

Total  4,820,867  4,272,700 
   

The following amounts, which are included in the property tax receivable amount, were held as cash 
by county treasurers at June 30. 

   
 2017 2016 

        General fund 108,591 111,087 
        Capital improvement fund 28,488 28,973 
        ADA/Hazardous waste fund                               -                               - 

Total 137,079 140,060 
   

 
 
 
 



WESTERN COMMUNITY COLLEGE AREA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

22 
 

Note 4.  Accounts Receivable 
Accounts receivable at June 30 were as follows: 
 2017 2016 

Federal nonexchange grants 368,510 381,204 
Tuition and fees 351,397 465,706 
State grants 211,418 119,769 
Other                   204,707                   207,104 

Total 1,136,032 1,173,783 
   

 
Note 5.  Inventories 
Inventories at June 30 were as follows:   
 2017 2016 

  Books and supplies 238,562 177,524 
Total 238,562 177,524 

 
 
Note 6.  Capital Assets 
Capital asset activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017 was as follows: 

 
June 30, 

2016 
 

Additions 
 

Deletions 
June 30, 

2017 
Capital assets, not being depreciated    

Land 849,878 154,810 - 1,004,688 
Artwork & collectibles 190,861 - - 190,861 
Construction in progress        32,984     219,406     194,976        57,414 

Total   1,073,723     374,216     194,976   1,252,963 
Capital Assets, being depreciated    

Land improvements 2,034,519 - - 2,034,519 
Buildings 41,135,053 194,976 - 41,330,029 
Equipment   8,704,023     947,736      380,292   9,271,467 

Total 51,873,595  1,142,712      380,292 52,636,015 
Less accumulated depreciation    

Land improvements 886,860 82,552 - 969,412 
Buildings 18,735,070 896,744 - 19,631,814 
Equipment   6,693,496       711,463     379,993     7,024,966   

Total 26,315,426  1,690,759     379,993   27,626,192 
Capital assets, net 26,631,892   (173,831)     195,275 26,262,786 
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Note 6.  Capital Assets (Continued) 
Capital asset activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016 was as follows: 

 
June 30, 

2015 
 

Additions 
 

Deletions 
June 30, 

2016 
Capital assets, not being depreciated    

Land 849,878 - - 849,878 
Artwork & collectibles 190,861 - - 190,861 
Construction in progress   5,081,725     345,520  5,394,261        32,984 

Total   6,122,464     345,520  5,394,261   1,073,723 
Capital Assets, being depreciated    

Land improvements 2,034,519 - - 2,034,519 
Buildings 35,740,792 5,394,261 - 41,135,053 
Equipment   7,903,237     800,786                 -   8,704,023 

Total 45,678,548  6,195,047                 - 51,873,595 
Less accumulated depreciation    

Land improvements 798,992 87,868 - 886,860 
Buildings 17,853,219 881,851 - 18,735,070 
Equipment   6,009,925       683,571                -     6,693,496   

Total 24,662,136  1,653,290                 -   26,315,426 
Capital assets, net 27,138,876  4,887,277  5,394,261 26,631,892 

  
Note 7.  Accrued Salaries 
Accrued salaries for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016 were composed of the following: 

      2017       2016 
Accrued salaries 1,188,173 1,272,240 
Accrued compensated absences     601,707     589,970 

Total accrued salaries  1,789,880  1,862,210 
 
Note 8.   Long-Term Liabilities 
Long-term liability activity for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2017 was as follows:  
 
 June 30, 

2016 
 

Additions 
 

Reductions 
June 30, 

2017 
Current 
Portion 

      
          Student Facility Bond 2,215,970 - 173,875 2,042,095 178,924 
          Student Facility Revenue Bond 1,715,698 - 80,320 1,635,378 81,349 
          WNCC Facilities Corp Bond 2,256,678 - 211,491 2,045,187 217,217 
          WNCC/ESU #13 Bond 1,710,000               -     142,500 1,567,500  146,250 
               Total bonds and notes payable 7,898,346               -     608,186 7,290,160  623,740 
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Note 8.   Long-Term Liabilities (Continued) 
Long-term liability activity for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2016 was as follows: 

 
 June 30, 

2015 
 

Additions 
 

Reductions 
June 30, 

2016 
Current 
Portion 

      
          Student Facility Bond 2,384,938 - 168,968 2,215,970 173,875 
          Student Facility Revenue Bond 1,795,000 - 79,302 1,715,698 80,319 
          WNCC Facilities Corp Bond 2,462,596 - 205,918 2,256,678 211,492 
          WNCC/ESU #13 Bond 1,856,250               -     146,250 1,710,000  142,500 
               Total bonds and notes payable 8,498,784               -     600,438 7,898,346  608,186 
                

 
Note 9.  Debt Service Requirements 
Student Facility Bond 
February 10, 2012 issue.  $2,963,045 due in semi-annual installments of $118,259 through April 30, 2027; interest 
at 2.883%, secured by residence hall rental receipts. 

 
WNCC Facilities Corp Bond  
February 10, 2012 issue.  $3,154,325 due in quarterly installments of $67,464 through December 15, 2025; interest 
at 2.68%, secured by the taxing authority of WCCA.               

 
WNCC/ESU #13 Limited Tax Facility Refunding Bonds 
June 17, 2013 issue.  $2,148,750 due in annual installments of $146,250 to $175,500 through June 15, 2027; 
interest at 0.40% to 2.70%, secured by the taxing authority of WCCA. 
 
Student Facilities Revenue Bond 
January 29, 2015 issue.  $1,795,000 due in annual principal installments of $79,302 to $101,028, plus semi-annual 
interest payments through December 15, 2034; interest at 2.565%, secured by residence hall rental receipts.  
 
Debt service requirements at June 30, 2017, were as follows: 

Year Ending 

Student 
Facilities 
Revenue  

Bond 
Student 

Facility Bond 

WNCC 
Facilities 

Corp Bond 

WNCC/ESU 
Limited Tax 
Refunding   

Bond   
June 30, Principal Principal Principal Principal Interest Totals 

       
2018 81,349 178,924 217,217 146,250 182,203 805,943 
2019 82,393 184,119 223,097 146,250 167,491 803,350 
2020 83,449 189,466 229,136 150,000 152,077 804,128 
2021 84,520 194,967 235,339 150,000 135,894 800,720 
2022 85,604 200,629 241,710 153,750 119,055 800,748 
2023-2027 444,770 1,093,990 898,688 821,250 324,794 3,583,492 
2028-2032 474,032 - - - 69,087 543,119 
2033-2035    299,261                -                -                -      11,579      310,840 

 1,635,378 2,042,095 2,045,187 1,567,500 1,162,180   8,452,340 
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Note 10.  Faculty Early Retirement Program 
The College established a faculty early retirement during the year ended June 30, 1992, for eligible employees 
to provide an incentive for early separation from the College.  Only full-time faculty members may participate.  
Further, eligible faculty must be at least 55 years of age and have a minimum of 15 years continuous full-time  
employment at the College prior to beginning early retirement.  Approved participants receive a stipend based 
upon salary, years of service, and age. 

 
At its January 16, 2013 meeting, the WCCA Board of Governors approved an agreement with the Western 
Education Association to terminate the Voluntary Early Retirement Incentive Plan as of June 30, 2013, and 
replace it with a Supplemental Retirement Account (SRA) benefit beginning July 1, 2013.   The agreement  
calls for annual contributions totaling $250,000 to faculty supplemental retirement accounts for the years ended 
June 30, 2014, 2015 and 2016.  The contributions thereafter will total $125,000 annually, per negotiations 
between the WCCA Board of Governors and the Western Education Association. 
 

 
Note 11.  Scholarship Allowances 

Scholarship allowances for fiscal years ended June 30 were as follows: 

 
Note 12.  Expenses by Functional Category 

          Assets 2017 2016 
                    Cash                 -              - 
   
          Liability – stipends due participants                -  250,000 
   
          Fund balance:   
                    Beginning fund balance                 -   (250,000) 
                    College contributions                 -   250,000 
                    Approved participant stipends                 -                 - 

 Relieve prior liability                 -                 - 
                    Ending fund balance                 -                 - 
   
                         Total liabilities and fund balance                  -              - 
   

Scholarship allowances consist of the following: 
1.  Student tuition, room, board, and book waivers, institutional 
2.  Student tuition waivers, statutory (reserves and war orphan) 
3.  Grant Funds (PELL, SEOG, NSG/NOG) credited to student accounts to 
     offset tuition fees, room and board, and bookstore charges. 

 

 2017 2016 
Tuition and fees 1,750,419 1,818,301 
Room, board, and books    965,148    958,274 

Total 2,715,567 2,776,575 

Expenses for the financial statements are presented by natural classification (personnel services, operating 
expense, travel, and expensed capital assets).  Both NACUBO and GASB have suggested that for historical 
purposes expenses also be presented by functional classifications.  Expenses by functional classification for the 
fiscal year ended June 30 are as follows: 
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Note 12.  Expenses by Functional Category (Continued) 

 

 

 

 
Note 14.  Deferred Compensation 
The College provides a deferred compensation plan, which was created in accordance with Internal Revenue 
Code Section 457(b).  This plan permits the employee to defer a portion of their salary until future years.  The 
deferred compensation is not available until termination, retirement, death or unforeseeable emergency. 
 
Pursuant to Neb. Rev. Stat. Section 48-1401, all compensation deferred under this Plan, all property and rights 
purchased with the deferred compensation, and all investment income attributable to the deferred compensation, 
property, or rights shall be held in trust for the exclusive benefit of Participants and their Beneficiaries by the 
Employer until such time as payments are made under the terms of this plan. 
 
The trust shall be administered in accordance with the requirements of applicable law, regulations and other 
guidance, including Neb. Rev. Stat. Section 48-1401and Treas Regs. Section 1.457-8. 
 
 
 
 

 2017 2016 
Educational and general:   

Instructional 9,132,787 9,354,098 
Academic support 4,212,923 3,550,860 
Student services 3,134,907 3,256,137 
Institutional support 6,354,707 6,390,262 
Physical plant 1,794,711 1,801,832 
Depreciation 1,690,759 1,653,290 
Student financial aid 1,829,213 1,809,315 

Auxiliary enterprises   1,354,465   1,176,018 
Total expenses 29,504,472 28,991,812 
   

Note 13.  Retirement Plan 
The College provides retirement benefits for its employees through a defined contribution plan.  In a defined 
contribution plan, benefits depend solely on amounts contributed to the plan, plus investment earnings.  
Generally, all regular full-time employees are eligible to participate in the plan.   Eligible employees are required 
to participate.  The College matches employee contributions from 6.5% to 8.5% of the employee’s gross annual 
salary.  Prior to FYE 6/30/17, the matching contributions were from 6.0% to 8.0% of the employee’s gross 
annual salary.  The participants are 100% vested upon contributing to the plan. 

 2017    2016 
   

Total payroll 11,740,965 11,342,260 
   

Covered payroll 10,648,050 10,402,978 

Employer contributions 864,131 792,598 
   

Employer contributions as a percentage of covered payroll 8.12% 7.62% 



WESTERN COMMUNITY COLLEGE AREA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

27 
 

Note 15.  Related Parties 
The College is the beneficiary of a Foundation, which provides support for the College by way of scholarships 
and other direct resources.   The College contracts to provide the Foundation limited services and office space 
without charge in exchange for the support the College receives.  Scholarships and other direct resources 
provided by the Foundation are remitted to the College.  Such amounts totaled $709,756 and $591,742 for the 
fiscal years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016.  In addition, the Foundation holds investments for the College of 
approximately $174,476 and $172,551 as of June 30, 2017 and 2016 respectively.   
 
The College also paid the Facilities Corporation, its blended component unit, rent of $269,859 in 2017, and 
$269,857 in 2016.  
 
Note 16.  Commitments 
As of June 30, 2017 and 2016 the College had commitments of approximately $0 and $180,403 
respectively with regard to uncompleted construction contracts. 
 
The College has a commitment to contribute a total of $125,000 annually to faculty supplemental 
retirement accounts per negotiations between the WCCA Board of Governors and the Western 
Education Association.  See Note 10 for additional details. 
 
Note 17.  Risk Management 
The College is exposed to various risks of loss from torts; theft of; damage to and destruction of assets; business 
interruption; employee injuries and illnesses; natural disasters; and employee health and accident benefits. 
Commercial insurance coverage is purchased for employee group health and accident benefits. Settled claims 
have not exceeded this commercial coverage in any of the three preceding years. 
 
The College has joined with the other five Nebraska community colleges to form the Nebraska Community 
College Insurance Trust, a public entity risk pool currently operating as a common risk management and 
insurance program for its members. The College pays an annual contribution to the Trust for its pooled self-
insurance coverage of property, liability, workers’ compensation, and associated excess coverages. The Trust 
self-insures to various levels for all categories of covered risk and purchases excess coverage for claims in 
excess of the self-insured limits. If the loss fund is exhausted, the Colleges may be assessed for additional costs.  
 
The insurance year ended June 30, 2017 was the Trust’s twenty-second year of operations. In May 2017, the 
Board of Directors of the Trust declared a dividend of $300,000 to be used as an offset to total contributions for 
the 2018 year. The College anticipates no future liabilities for additional incurred losses for all previous years. 
 
Note 18.  Contingency 
The College receives funds from various federal grants principally from the U.S. Department of Education.  
These funds are to be expended in accordance with the provisions of the grants.   
 
Compliance with these grants is subject to audit by the U.S. Department of Education and by independent 
certified public accountants.  Non-compliance could result in sanctions or questioned costs which may result in 
the return of funds to the Department of Education. 
 
Note 19.  Budget Process 
Prior to August 31, the College’s management and Board of Governors prepare a proposed operating budget on 
the cash basis for the general, restricted, and plant funds for the fiscal year commencing July 1.  The budget 
includes proposed expenditures and the means of financing them. 
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Note 19.  Budget Process (Continued) 
Public hearings are conducted at the September board meeting to obtain taxpayer comments. After the public 
hearings the budget is legally adopted by the Board of Governors through passage of a resolution at the 
September meeting. 
 
Total expenditures may not legally exceed total appropriations and appropriations lapse at year end. 
 
Note 20.  Segment Disclosure 
The College issued the 2015 series revenue bonds to remodel and expand a residence hall on the Scottsbluff 
campus for student living.  Summary information for the Scottsbluff residence halls is presented below. 
 
Condensed Statement of Financial Position  
  
 2017     2016 
Assets:   

 Current assets 25,796              1,060 
 Noncurrent assets - - 
 Capital assets    9,748,909 10,035,430 

Total assets   9,774,705 10,036,490 
Liabilities:   

Current liabilities  260,273 254,194 
Noncurrent liabilities   3,417,200   3,677,474 

Total liabilities 3,677,473 3,931,668 
Net position:   

Net investment in capital assets 6,071,436 6,103,762 
Restricted - - 
Unrestricted        25,796          1,060 

        6,097,232        6,104,822 
   

 
Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 
   
Operating revenues (pledged against bonds)                649,626                619,587 
Depreciation expense (286,521) (275,283) 
Other operating expenses     (350,164)    (424,481) 

Operating income (loss) 12,941  (80,177) 
   
Nonoperating revenue (expense)   
    Property Taxes - 71,711 
    Interest expense    (105,620)    (112,573) 
Transfers in 490,335 634,600 
Transfers out    (405,246)    (404,686) 
   
Change in net position (7,590) 108,875 
   
Beginning net position    6,104,822    5,995,947 
Ending net position     6,097,232    6,104,822 
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Note 20.  Segment Disclosure (Continued) 
   
Condensed Statement of Cash Flows   

   
Net cash provided (used) by:   

Operating activities 384,551 425,020 
Noncapital financing activities - - 
Capital and related financing activities (359,815) (611,369) 
Investing activities                  -                  - 
Net increase (decrease) 24,736 (186,349) 

Beginning cash and cash equivalents          1,060      187,409 
Ending cash and cash equivalents        25,796          1,060 

 
 
Note 21.  Blended Component Unit Disclosure 
The Western Nebraska Community College Facilities Corporation is presented as a blended component unit of 
the Western Community College Area.  Summary information for the Facilities Corporation is presented below. 
 
Condensed Statement of Financial Position  
 2017 2016 
  

WNCC 
Facilities 

Corporation 
 

WNCC 
Facilities 

Corporation 
Assets:     

Current assets        30,026,012 31,089        25,905,286 31,777 
Capital assets 22,631,944 3,630,842 22,872,480 3,759,412 
Other assets        174,476                 -       172,551                 - 

Total assets  52,832,432  3,661,931  48,950,317  3,791,189 
Liabilities:     

 Current liabilities  3,215,768 219,470 3,129,054 213,976 
Noncurrent liabilities   4,838,450  1,827,970   5,244,973  2,045,187 

 Total liabilities 8,054,218 2,047,440 8,374,027 2,259,163 
Net position:     

Net investment in capital assets 17,386,970 1,585,656 17,230,812 1,502,734 
Restricted 8,598,799 28,835 6,219,160 29,292 
Unrestricted  18,792,445                 -  17,126,318                 - 

  44,778,214  1,614,491  40,576,290  1,532,026 
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Note 21.  Blended Component Unit Disclosure (Continued) 
Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 
     
Operating revenues          5,011,580 -         4,598,762 - 
Depreciation expense (1,562,189) (128,570) (1,524,720) (128,570) 
Other operating expenses  (27,813,713)                  - (27,338,522)                  - 

Operating income (loss)  (24,364,322)   (128,570)  (24,264,480)   (128,570) 
     
Nonoperating revenue (expense) 26,320,484 - 25,946,815 - 
Interest expense    (157,157) (58,824)    (155,134) (64,388) 
Transfers in - 269,859 - 269,855 
Transfers out (269,859)               - (269,855)               - 
Other Income    2,672,778                 -    2,431,587                 - 
     
Change in net position  4,201,924 82,465  3,688,933 76,897 

     
Beginning net position  40,576,290  1,532,026  36,887,357  1,455,129 
Ending net position  44,778,214  1,614,491  40,576,290  1,532,026 

     
 
Condensed Statement of Cash Flows 

     
Net cash provided (used) by:     
     Operating activities (22,540,336) 269,859 (23,709,194) 269,855 
     Noncapital financing activities 25,665,967  - 25,552,466  - 
     Capital and related financing activities 669,028  (270,547) 593,443  (270,532) 
     Investing activities  (3,917,091)                -  (2,172,011)                - 

Net increase (decrease) (122,432) (688) 264,704 (677) 
Beginning cash and cash equivalents  12,367,398      31,777  12,102,694      32,454 
Ending cash and cash equivalents  12,244,966      31,089  12,367,398      31,777 

 
Note 22.  Legal Restriction of Net Position 
Of the $8,084,354 of the net position restricted for capital projects as of June 30, 2017, $1,025,282 were  
restricted by Nebraska statute section 85-1515 for facility fees. 
 
Note 23.  Subsequent Events 
Subsequent events have been evaluated through November 2, 2017 which is the date the financial statements 
were available to be issued. 
 
On March 16, 2017, the Nebraska Coordinating Commission for Postsecondary Education approved the WNCC 
Main Building Addition and Renovation project.  The project will be financed from the Capital Improvement 
Fund, ADA/Hazardous Materials Fund, and certificate of participation (debt) proceeds. 
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WESTERN COMMUNITY COLLEGE AREA 
SCHEDULE OF GENERAL FUND REVENUES 

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 AND 2016 
 
 
                2017                    2016 
   
State aid 12,440,842  12,590,911  
Property taxes 10,118,576 9,380,359 
Tuition & Fees 4,044,967 3,921,989 
Other income 349,254 311,587 
(Add to) /use cash reserves (1,868,527)     (1,548,907)     
  25,085,112  24,655,939 
   

 
The revenues in this schedule are presented on the same basis as the College’s general 
fund budget and are not on a GASB basis of accounting. In particular, tuition is not 
reduced for scholarship allowances from grants and some other funds. 
 
 
PROPERTY VALUATION AND PROPERTY TAX REVENUE 
 
The property valuation for Western Community College Area as reported by County 
Assessor in late August 2016 for use in property tax revenue for June 30, 2017 was 
$12,516,070,016.  The General Fund property tax rate for June 30, 2017 is 7.9637 cents 
per $100 valuation. 
 
The property valuation for Western Community College Area as reported by County 
Assessor in late August 2015 for use in property tax revenue for June 30, 2016 was 
$11,737,011,968.  The General Fund property tax rate for June 30, 2016 is 7.9717 cents 
per $100 valuation. 
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WESTERN COMMUNITY COLLEGE AREA 

SCHEDULE OF GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES 
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 AND 2016 

 
PROGRAM CLASSIFICATION STRUCTURE 

 
 2017                2016 

INSTRUCTION   
     Personal services 7,012,999 7,366,682 
     Operating expenses 1,502,644 1,554,346 
     Travel 109,604 58,532 
     Equipment         87,990       108,384 
    8,713,237    9,087,944 
   
ACADEMIC SUPPORT   
     Personal services 2,959,299 2,613,102 
     Operating expenses 828,522 699,518 
     Travel 77,772 67,821 
     Equipment        38,066        38,859 
   3,903,659   3,419,300 
   
STUDENT SUPPORT   
     Personal services 1,762,473 1,777,940 
     Operating expenses 593,387 613,697 
     Travel 194,107 190,809 
     Equipment          3,629          6,681 
   2,553,596   2,589,127 
   
INSTITUTIONAL ADMINISTRATION   
     Personal services 3,275,764 3,118,330 
     Operating expenses 2,857,031 2,836,263 
     Travel 148,023 144,712 
     Equipment        40,452        47,018 
   6,321,270   6,146,323 
   
PHYSICAL PLANT OPERATIONS   
     Personal services 433,128 414,732 
     Operating expenses 2,283,441 2,139,691 
     Travel 1,142 - 
     Equipment        11,159          3,419 
   2,728,870   2,557,842 
   
STUDENT FINANCIAL SUPPORT   
     Operating expenses      864,478      855,403 
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WESTERN COMMUNITY COLLEGE AREA 

SCHEDULE OF GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES 
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 AND 2016 

 
PROGRAM CLASSIFICATION STRUCTURE 

 
                2017                     2016 
   
GRAND TOTAL FOR COLLEGE   
     Personal services 15,443,664 15,290,786 
     Operating expenses 8,929,504 8,698,918 
     Travel 530,648 461,874 
     Equipment      181,296      204,361 
 25,085,112 24,655,939 
   

The expenditures in this schedule are presented on the same basis as the College’s 
General Fund budget and are not on a GASB basis of accounting. In particular, 
equipment is shown as an expense. 
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Federal
Federal Grantor/Pass-through Grantor  CFDA Contract Federal

Program Title Number Number Expenditures

U.S. Department of Education:

Direct Programs:
Student Financial Aid Cluster:

Federal Pell Grant Program 2015-16 84.063 P063P151785 2,134              
Federal Pell Grant Program 2016-17 84.063 P063P161785 1,925,309       
Federal Supplemental Educational Opportunity Grants 2016-17 84.007 P007A162463 30,956            
Federal Work Study Program 2016-17 84.033 P033A162463 50,158            
Federal Direct Student Loans 2015-16 84.268 P268K161785 26,254            
Federal Direct Student Loans 2016-17 84.268 P268K171785 1,155,411       

Total Student Financial Aid Cluster 3,190,222       

Passed through Nebraska Department of Education:
Adult Education - Basic Grants to States

Adult Basic Education 84.002 17-2AEF-19-00-941000 193,695          
Adult Basic Education - Alliance 84.002 17-2AEF-01-00-941000 16,209            
Institutionalized 84.002 17-2AEF-19-00-941000 11,353            
Volunteer Coordination 84.002 17-2AES-19-00-941000 10,909            
Adult Education Professional Development 84.002 17-2AEP-19-00-941000 6,225              

Total Adult Education Program 238,391          

Direct Programs:
TRIO - Upward Bound

Upward Bound 2015-16 84.047A P047A121585 115,234          
Upward Bound 2016-17 84.047A P047A121585 192,498          
Veterans Upward Bound 2015-16 84.047A P047V120120 48,513            
Veterans Upward Bound 2016-17 84.047A P047V120120 242,276          

TRIO - Student Support Services
Title IV, Student Support Services 2015-16 84.042A P042A150153 41,976            
Title IV, Student Support Services 2016-17 84.042A P042A150153 289,659          
Student Support Services Supplementary 84.042A P042A150153 5,000              

935,156          

Passed through Nebraska Department of Education:
Career and Technical Education - Basic Grants to States 84.048 V048A160027 130,156          

130,156          

Total U.S. Department of Education: 4,493,925       

National Aeronautics and Space Administration:

Passed through Board of Regents University of Nebraska:
Education 43.008 NNX15AI09H 3,744              

3,744              

TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 4,497,669       

See accompanying notes to schedule of federal awards.
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WESTERN COMMUNITY COLLEGE AREA 
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 
 
 

NOTE 1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION 
 

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards includes federal award 
activity of Western Community College Area.  The information in this schedule is 
presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal 
Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and 
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance).  Because the schedule 
presents only a selected portion of the operations of the College, it’s not intended to and 
does not present the financial position, changes in net assets, or cash flows of the College. 
 

NOTE 2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 

The schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented on the accrual basis of 
accounting. 

 
NOTE 3. INDIRECT COST RATE 
 
  The College did not elect to use the indirect cost rate. 
 
NOTE 4. SUBRECIPIENTS 
 

Western Community College Area provided no federal awards to subrecipients. 



DANA F. COLE 
& COMPANYLLP 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS 

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED 
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

To the Board of Governors 
Western Community College Area 
Scottsbluff, Nebraska 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Stand­

ards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States of America, the financial statements of 
the business-type activities and the discretely presented component unit of Western Community Col­
lege Area (College) as of June 30, 2017, and the related the related notes to the financial statements, 
which collectively comprise Western Community College Area's basic financial statements, and have 
issued our report thereon dated November 2, 2017. The financial statements of Western Nebraska 
Community College Foundation (Foundation), a discretely presented component unit of the College, 
were not audited in accordance with Government Auditing Standards, and accordingly, this report 
does not include reporting on internal control over financial reporting or instances of reportable non­
compliance associated with the Foundation. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Western Community 
College Area's internal control over financial reporting to determine the audit procedures that are ap­
propriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, 
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Western Community College 
Area's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Western 
Community College Area's internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow man­
agement or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a com­
bination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material 
misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on 
a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by 
those charged with governance. 
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Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in 
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control 
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations during our audit, 
we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. 
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Western Community College Area's financial 
statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provi­
sions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a 
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an 
opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do 
not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or 
other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compli­
ance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's 
internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance 
with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Ac­
cordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

Scottsbluff, Nebraska 
November 2, 2017 
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DANA F. COLE 
& COMPANYLLP 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH 
MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM AND REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL 

OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE 

To the Board of Governors 
Western Community College Area 
Scottsbluff, Nebraska 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 

We have audited Western Community College Area's compliance with the types of compliance 
requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material 
effect on each of Western Community College Area's major federal programs for the year ended 
June 30, 2017. Western Community College Area's major federal programs are identified in the 
summary of auditors' results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned 
costs. 

Management's Responsibility 

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of federal statutes, regulations, 
and the terms and conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion for each of Western Community College Area's major fed­
eral programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We 
conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Au­

diting Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements 
of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, 

Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards 
and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assur­
ance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above 
that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes 
examining, on a test basis, evidence about Western Community College Area's compliance with 
those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the cir­
cumstances. 

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major 
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Western Community 
College Area's compliance. 
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Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

In our opinion, Western Community College Area complied, in all material respects, with the compliance 
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal 
programs for the year ended June 30, 2017. 

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 

Management of Western Community College Area is responsible for establishing and maintaining ef­
fective internal control over compliance with the requirements referred to above. In planning and per­
forming our audit of compliance, we considered Western Community College Area's internal control 
over compliance with the requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal 
program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the pur­
pose of expressing our opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report 
on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose 
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do 
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Western Community College Area's internal control over 
compliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their as­
signed functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance require­
ment of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance 

is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a 
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal 
program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in 

internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control 
over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a 
material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by 
those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over com­
pliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any defi­
ciencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, 
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements 
of Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 

Scottsbluff, Nebraska 
November 2, 2017 
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WESTERN COMMUNITY COLLEGE AREA 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

SECTION I. SUMMARY OF AUDITORS' RESULTS 

Financial Statements 

Type of auditors' report issued: 

Internal control over financial reporting: 

Material weakness identified: 

Significant deficiencies identified 
that are not considered to be 
material weaknesses: 

Noncompliance matter to the financial 
statements disclosed: 

Federal Awards 

Internal control over major programs: 

Material weakness identified: 

Significant deficiencies identified 
that are not considered to be 
material weaknesses: 

Type of auditors' report issued on 
compliance for major programs: 

Any audit findings disclosed that are 
required to be reported in accord­
ance with 2 CFR Section 200.516(a): 

Identification of major programs: 

Student Financial Aid Cluster 
Federal Pell Grant Program 
Federal Supplemental Educational 

Opportunity Grants 
Federal Work-Study Program 
Federal Direct Student Loans 

TRIO Cluster 
TRIO Student Support Services 
TRIO Upward Bound 
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Unmodified 

_Yes _x_No 

_Yes_x_No 

_Yes_x_No 

_Yes_x_No 

_Yes �No 

Unmodified 

_Yes �No 

84.063 

84.007 
84.033 
84.268 

84.042 
84.047 



 

WESTERN COMMUNITY COLLEGE AREA 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 
 
 
SECTION  I. SUMMARY OF AUDITORS' RESULTS (Continued) 
 
 Dollar threshold used to distinguish 
  between type A and type B programs: $750,000 
 
 Auditee qualified as a low-risk auditee:   X   Yes       No 
 
SECTION  II. FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS 
 
  None reported. 
 
SECTION III. FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
 
  None reported. 
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WESTERN COMMUNITY COLLEGE AREA 
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

There were no audit findings for the year ended June 30, 2016. 
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